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CHAIR PONTANILLA:

(Gavel).

Good morning, Members.

The

14

Housing and Human Services Committee will come to

15

order.

16

members that are here this morning, Member Carroll,

17

Member Mateo, and joining us will be -- soon will be

18

Member Molina, who's the Co-Chair, for the -- also

19

joining us this morning is Member Wayne Nishiki, as

20

well as our Council Chair, Dain P. Kane.

21

22

ITEM NO. 4(1):

At this time I'd like to introduce the

COUNCIL APPROVAL OF AFFORDABLE HOUSING
PROJECTS PROPOSED PURSUANT TO CHAPTER
201G, HAWAII REVISED STATUTES (WAIKAPU
AFFORDABLE HOUSING SUBDIVISION)

23

24
25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

The agenda for this morning is

going to have public testimony first, then the
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1

developer will come up and do their presentation,

2

followed by the various departments of the Maui

3

county in regards to the Pu'unoa [sic] project.

4

this time I'd like to ask the people in the audience

5

to turn off or put their pagers and cell phone on

6

the silent mode.

7

do have construction going on at the County

8

building, so if you can bear with the noise, we'll

9

really appreciate it.

At

And for those of you, you know, we

Okay, at this time I'd like to ask for public

10
11

testimony.

12

item that's on the agenda this morning.

13

limited to three minutes, with one minute to

14

conclude, or if you want more time, you have three

15

minutes, then after the last testifier has testified

16

you can come up for another three minutes.

Mr. Glenn Shepherd.
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

19

20
21

MR. SHEPHERD:

I was number four on the list, how did I

jump to the top?

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

It will be

So the first testifier this morning is

17
18

The testimony will be accepted for the

You're special this morning.
Good answer.

Good answer.

As my former professor, you got the

privilege.
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MR. SHEPHERD:

What course did you take with me?

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

MR. SHEPHERD:

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

MR. SHEPHERD:

Geology.

Good.

You've seen these things.

Yes.

Good morning, Council Members, public.

My

6

name is Glenn Shepherd.

I used to try to get

7

knowledge into people like the Chairman here today,

8

and sometimes it sticks, sometimes it doesn't,

9

sometimes you have to refresh them.

But I want to

10

bring up one thing that was exposed here

11

something probably that you haven't seen before.

12

It's a publication put out by the State.

13

called the Detailed Land Classification - Island of

14

Maui.

15

agricultural standpoint, its productivity, its soil

16

tillage

17

l

and

This is

It rates all of the lands from an

l

whether it can be machine tilled, what not.

If you haven't seen this document, you damn

18

well should, because we're facing with increasing

19

numbers of parcels of land that are class A machine

20

tillable highly productive lands that we're

21

plastering them over with housing developments, when

22

we can damn well go to other lands which are not

23

endowed with such good ratings.

24

common sense to do that.

25

happening in many places in the world.

It only makes good

This is what's been
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1

the best productive lands and they cover them with

2

housing.

3

Last one was taking the lands -- the sugar company

4

put for a power plant that was not sited in the

5

right place.

We're doing the same thing bit by bit.

The other document is Maui Land

6

7

Classification by Physical Qualifiers for Urban

8

Usage.

9

see it.

If you haven't seen it, you really should
Now, this piece of property that Spencer's

10

trying to take over has . the very best of all the

11

qualifications for agricultural lands.

12

you, when you took office, said I'm going to protect

13

agricultural lands.

14

really.

15

beyond my ability to determine, land developers get

16

what they want.

17

But I urge you do not pass this thing unless you

18

have thoroughly investigated all of the aspects of

19

this particular event.

20

Now, all of

Well, it hasn't happened

For some reasons or another which are far

They must be doing something right.

Could other lands be used?

You betcha.

Too steep.

Take

21

a look at Wailuku Heights.

22

rocks.

23

Right place to do it.

24

taking those lands out there at Waikapu -- it's got

25

all the water, it's got the very best lands -- is an

Not machine tillable.

Too many

Put in developments.

Made a nice development.
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7

abomination.

2

MS. ALUETA:

3

MR. SHEPHERD:

Three minutes.
Now, the second thing is have these lands

4

been surveyed for detrimental chemicals?

It's been

5

agriculturalized for a long time.

6

it once before.

7

part of the government, which is supposed to

8

represent us, which is to analyze these lands.

9

Those lands that -- soils that I analyzed before had

I personally did

I refuse to do it any more.

It's

10

class C carcinogens.

11

agricultural land.

12

or detrimental things.

13

going to be living on that land.

14

be playing on the dirt and what not, and I take

15

exception to plowing ahead without doing the

16

homework on these two particular points that I

17

brought up today.

18
19
20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

It also might have carcinogens
Now remember, people are
Kids are going to

Thank you very much.

Thank you, Mr. Shepherd.

for the testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

This is very intensive

Any questions

Mr. Kane.

Thank you, Chair.

Can we get copy

21

of -- or how can we get a copy of your document that

22

you brought forward there/ Mr. Shepherd?

23

MR. SHEPHERD:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

Two documents.
The first one, would you be able to

provide our Staff with the opportunity to make
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2

8

copies of that particular book?
MR. SHEPHERD:

If you make copies of it, fine and dandy,

3

but remember, I've given away so many copies and

4

they're out of print.

5

Maybe they are in print.

6

have reprinted it, but it's something that each and

7

everyone of you people should have in your files.

8

I'll leave it with you.

9
10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:
MR. SHEPHERD:

They should be in print.
I don't know.

Thank you.

They should

Can leave it with the

And if you do anything with this thing, I'm

11

going to be down the road to get you.

12

neighbor.

13

lands that couldn't be agriculturalized and it's a

14

very nice residential area.

He lives up there in that area which is

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

17

MR. SHEPHERD:

18

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

19

20

He's my

Thank you.
Thank you, Glenn.

You ought to have this one too.
Okay, next up is Giovanni

Rosati.
MR. ROSATI:

Good morning, Chair and Members of the

21

Committee.

Giovanni Rosati, Coordinator for the

22

Maui Nui Housing Task Force.

23

real briefly about our exposure to the project.

24

have met with the representatives of Spencer Homes

25

and had an opportunity to see the project briefly,

I just wanted to speak
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1

and we're definitely encouraged by the affordable

2

component and the sincerity, in our opinion, of the

3

developer's desire to meet the need for housing.

4

It's definitely not our task force's role to say how

5

wide a street should be or where a home should be

6

built.

7

affordable housing, and we'd say that right now

8

we're strongly encouraged.

Our position is more to advocate for

Excuse me.

And I also wanted to mention that ort July

9

10

22nd we're going to hold our next full meeting of

11

the task force, and that's at 11:30, and we're going

12

to give our task force an opportunity to vote on the

13

project, and that will determine our position as to

14

whether we're for or against the project.

15

you.

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

Thank you, Giovanni.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

17
18

Member Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

It is mentioned that 51 percent

20

will be affordable.

21

breakdown of homes that -- and the cost?

22

MR. ROSATI:

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

24

MR. ROSATI:

25

Thank

Have you ever seen the

I haven't seen
Has it been presented to you?

I haven't seen a printed form, but in my

discussion with the developer, they have given very
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1

general indications about pricing.

2

to that 51 percent, the balance, the 49 percent, is

3

not going to be a market price.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

5

MR. ROSATI:

6

7
8

9
10

And in addition

So I think that

Right.

-- it's a bit misleading to say market and

affordable for their project.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

So I'm just talking about

affordable, because that's what I'm concerned about.
MR. ROSATI:

Right.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So your answer is no, you've not

11

seen a breakdown on how many of the homes would be

12

priced in certain categories?

13
14

15

MR. ROSATI:

Correct.

That's one of the reasons I'm here

today, is hopefully to see that information.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I would hope that you would

16

scrutinize that as you -- before you even take a

17

vote.

18

you come out publiclYI to let us know also if there

19

are concerns.

And maybe if you have some concerns, just as

20

MR. ROSATI:

I agree.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And I hope you will be objective

22

when you look at these things.

23

approached by the developer to come on his behalf to

24

pursue and back this from a surface standpoint?

25

MR. ROSATI:

Have you been

No.
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1

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

2

MR. ROSATI:

Okay.

We're here just

this is our role is to be

3

an advocate, and so we take an interest in this any

4

time it's going to be before the Council, any

5

project like this.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So if one -- take, for example, if

7

one home out of ten homes is affordable, then you

8

support the whole project if there was such a thing

9

that was occurring?

10

MR. ROSATI:

First of all, that wouldn't be my choice.

11

That would be a choice of the - - of the task force

12

as a whole.

13

that would not be a project that would meet the

14

muster for the task force, that we're looking for

15

something more than that.

My own comment about that would be that

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

17

MR. ROSATI:

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any more questions?

Member Mateo.

Thank you, Chairman.

Good morning, Mr. Rosati.

Your encouragement

21

of the project based on the conversation you had

22

with the developer, that encouragement is based on

23

the fact that 51 percent of this project is -- is

24

considered affordable?

25

MR. ROSATI:

That and also the developer's representation
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1

to us that the homes that are not in that affordable

2

category are also going to be priced below market.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

5

MR. ROSATI:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you.

Thank you.
Any more questions?

Thank you,

Giovanni.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

Thank you.

Yes, I do.

Oh, Member Nishiki.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

What -- and would you hold that

11

person's representation to you?

12

because he or she or they said, but we've known

13

where from what they've said to what it actually

14

sells for sometimes has gone up, and then the excuse

15

is given, oh, government gets in the way and the

16

whole gamut, and yet government has an important

17

role and government is giving a bunch of the

18

exceptions too -- exemptions, excuse me, to this

19

project.

20

Mr. Giovanni Rosati, an amount that he is to charge,

21

what was that amount that he says the market homes

22

would be charged?

23

24
25

MR. ROSATI:

In other words,

So if someone represents to you,

Did he give you any cost?

He gave broad ranges and I don't have that

right in front of me.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Can you give me that -- the price?
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13

MR. ROSATI:

Yeah, and I think that the developers are

2

still in the process of setting that, and so that's

3

part of why I'm here today as well, is to see that.

4

And I -- the only thing I might say about that is

5

that my knowledge of the developer's past is that

6

that's not uncharacteristic for them, that they have

7

sold homes that were not an affordable project but

8

at prices that were more reasonable than what the

9

market would bear.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12

MR. ROSATI:

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

MR. JENCKS:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Giovanni.

Thank you.
Next testifier is Charlie Jencks.

Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members of the
My name is Charlie Jencks.

I'm here

15

Committee.

16

today acting on behalf of the Maui Contractors.

17

the President of the Maui Contractors Association.

18

Just brief history with my relationship with

19

Mr. Spencer, I've known Jesse since my days as a

20

Deputy and also Director for Public Works for the

21

County of Maui, and I've also -- always known Jesse

22

to be a straightforward, no nonsense, bottom line

23

kind of guy.

24

great job in South Maui.

25

has built, for example r in Piilani Village, were

He builds a good product.

I'm

He's done a

Many of the homes that he
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1

priced very attractively for our residents and they

2

sold out very quickly.

3

good product for a reasonable price and really

4

strives to address the community's needs, in many

5

in many ways not only in his business life but also

6

his private life.

7

he looks toward benefitting the community in many

8

ways.

9

He does a good job.

Finds a

He's an active church member and

We talked the other night about this project,

10

and I had been reading about it.

We talked about it

11

within the Maui Contractors Association, and I would

12

say to you today that given this project, which is

13

going to provide 400 units, which Mr. Rosati talked

14

about a few minutes ago, in the affordable range,

15

not only 50 percent at a very attractive bracket,

16

but also 50 percent at a higher bracket,

17

nonetheless, all affordable by some standard.

18

have this project.

19

project.

20

Resort, that's going to offer 250 units.

21

looking at over 500 units in Maui County that are

22

waiting for some kind of action.

23

like the present to do something to get some more

24

affordable product into the marketplace so that

25

people who live here can afford to buy and live and

We

We have the Pu'unoa Village

We also have another project, Makena
We're

There's no time
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15

enjoy where they work and play.

2

Just talking briefly this morning about some

3

of the issues associated with the project, clearly,

4

yes, Mr. Shepherd made a good point, ag land is

5

important to Maui County, but in the grand scheme of

6

things we also have to think about future

7

urbanization and where people are going to live.

8

This land is -- I would consider it on the urban

9

fringe.

It does have sewer service, which makes it

10

I think urban -- urban-type land, even though it is

11

rated very high on the agricultural scale.

12

The water situation will have to be worked

13

out with the Director of Water Supply.

14

for this project, one of them is Waiale Drive.

15

project helps facilitate the future extension of

16

Waiale brive out tp H-Piilani Highway, which, by the

17

way, you should look at carefully, because in the

18

prior conditions for Wailuku Project District there

19

was a requirement, dedicate land for the Waiale

20

right-of-way from Wailuku Agribusiness.

21

Parks will be taken care of.

The roads
This

There's

22

reasonable distance to the schools in the area.

23

This project makes some sense in that it is located

24

properly, does seem to fit a lot of the issues that

25

you would want to address, and we just feel that you
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1

should support the project, make quick work of this,

2

and get some affordable product into the

3

marketplace.

4

to do the same.

5

•

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

testifier?

Thank you.

. . END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY.

Members, any questions for the
If not, thank you.

Okay, Members, this morning we have that one

8
9

So we support the project and ask you

item on the agenda, affordable housing project

10

pursuant to Chapter 201G, Hawaii Revised Statutes,

11

Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision.

12

result of an application submitted by Spencer Homes,

13

Incorporated for the development of the proposed

14

Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision.

15

proposed is approximately 410 single-family

16

residences, at least 51 percent of which will be

17

sold at price affordable to families earning 120

18

percent or less of the County median income.

19

This is a

The project

So at this time I'd like to calIon the

20

developer to do their presentation in regards to

21

this affordable housing project.

22

short recess subject to the call of the Chair.

23

(Gavel) .

24

RECESS:

25

RECONVENE:

I will take a

9:20 a.m.
9: 21 a.m.

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

HHS 7/6/04

17

1

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

2

MR. JESSE SPENCER:

(Gavel).
Yeah, excuse me, I'm Jesse Spencer,

3

President of Spencer Homes, and I'd like to thank

4

the Chair and all the people involved in this.

5

Affordable housing is kind of an emotional thing

6

with me as well as my entire family.

7

real young! five! six years old! we were poor! but

8

as a young person you don't know that.

9

on when you get into high school and you start

When I was

Then later

10

getting involved in some of the social activities

11

and you live in substandard home! a place that

12

you're ashamed of! and so that even if you go to a

13

school outing you have someone drop you off some

14

place else so that you don't have to show them where

15

you live! so this is kind of a beginning of the

16

thoughts of a family should have a home.

17

And when my wife and I -- we got married 50

18

years ago! by the way.

19

Indiana University to go to school! and our first

20

home was Navy surplus trailer! 8 by 17.

21

doesn't leave room for a bathroom and some of the

22

other facilities! and -- but again! it was an

23

opportunity to get through school and to better

24

ourselves.

25

We immediately went to

That

Now! then! the niche -- you know! I cannot
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1

solve all the housing problems.

There's a

2

distinction between low income housing, which

3

requires subsidies, and affordable housing, which

4

individuals and families are working two or three

5

jobs and can afford to buy a house as long as the

6

price is affordable.

7

attempting to do.

8

it cannot be solved by a few houses here and a few

9

houses there.

And that's what we're

It's -- oh, like I say, it's

We have over 3,000 application, and

10

Mark has the box if any of you want to thumb through

11

all of them.

12

I have three particular letters that have

13

been mailed to me and they represent basically

14

almost like three categories of people.

One of

15

them -- and I'm going to say the names.

I hope

16

they'll forgive me.

17

of them are police officers.

18

to me, oh, over a year ago when we started this

19

process and they were deployed on Molokai for one

20

year and so they write us a letter wanting to be

21

part of that lottery chance to own a home.

22

Richard and Tanya Dodd.

Both

Their letter was sent

We have another letter from a young lady that

23

has lived in Waikapu all of her life.

She went to

24

school and married.

25

to live in the Waikapu area, and again, another

Now they'd like a chance again
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1

categorYr which we just got this one.

And by the

2

waYr that young lady's name is Celestes Mollena r not

3

spelled -- you know, M-O-L-L-E-N-A.

4

you know these people, you know that I'm talking

5

about real people.

So if any of

Then we have a letter from a Sergeant Bronson

6

7

Gonsalves.

He's in Iraq right now and he -- I don't

8

know all this computer business, but he was able to

9

pull up some of the latest things on our project.

10

He signed up and one of his applications are in our

11

files, and I've told several people -- I've told all

12

the Council people that have been willing to listen

13

to me that -- the 51 percent is what is required by

14

the 201G, but these individuals and these class of

15

individuals r even though they might not be drawn,

16

they're going to be in a special category with me.

17

Otherwise r I understand the balance of those that I

18

can somewhat put people in there that I might want

19

in there, and these are people that will go in

20

there.

21

SOr againr I'm fortunate to have a family

22

that's dedicated like I am to this same idea, and I

23

have my son Mark r who is going to have to be the one

24

that does all the hard part of it.

25

thank Karlynn of Munekiyo & Company.
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1

have gotten through this, all the hoops that you

2

have to jump through.

3

process, I'd hate to see a long one.

4

this over 14 months and it's not over yet.

If this were called a short
We've been in

So, again, I'd like to thank all the people

5

6

in attendance and I think it's a good project.

7

think our projects stand out in the way that we

8

prepare them.

9

this consideration, and we will build this out.

I

So, again, I'd ask that you give us
We

10

have a history of building affordable houses, so

11

when we say we're going to do it, we will do it.

12

that's about all I can -- I think our reputation of

13

building affordable will speak for itself.

14

you.

15

questions.

Later?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Question.

until -COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

Yeah, later.

Mr. Nishiki, can you hold your question

20

22

Thank

I thought maybe there was going to be some

16

19

So

Sure.

-- the developer is completed with

their presentation.
MS. KAWAHARA:

Good morning, Committee Chair Pontanilla

24

and Members of the Housing and Human Services

25

Committee.

My name is Karlynn Kawahara, and I am a
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1

member -- I'm a Planner with the firm of Munekiyo &

2

Hiraga, Inc.

3

proposed Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision

4

project team.

5

to introduce them.

6

Spencer of Spencer Homes, Inc.; Michael Munekiyo of

7

Munekiyo & Hiraga, the project's planners; Stacy

8

Otomo of Otomo Engineering, the project's civil

9

engineer; Phillip Rowell of Phillip Rowell &

Joining me today are Members of the

I would like to take this opportunity
They are Mr. Jesse and Mark

10

Associates, the project's traffic engineer; and

11

Martin Luna of Carlsmith Ball, the project's legal

12

counsel.

13

The proposed 410, plus or minus,

14

single-family residential subdivision is located in

15

Waikapu and is bounded by Honoapiilani Highway to

16

the west, Waiolu Street and single-family residences

17

to the south, and vacant lands that were formerly

18

used for agricultural and sand mining purposes to

19

the north and east.

20

approximately 94 acres and a portion of TMK 3-5-2:1.

21

The project site is

The Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision

22

will feature a variety of one- or two-story

23

residences from two bedrooms, two baths to four

24

bedrooms and three baths.

25

enclosed garage.

All models include an

Additionally, an approximately
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1

10.33 acre linear park that will be privately owned

2

and privately maintained by the homeowners

3

association will be constructed.

4

Agribusiness will secure an easement to the

5

Wailuku -- Waikapu, excuse me, Reservoir from

6

Spencer Homes.

7

Wailuku

The project also includes provisions for

8

Spencer Homes to purchase a portion of Waiale Road

9

from Kuikahi Drive to East Waiko Road and to improve

10

the road for access to the subdivision.

11

Additionally, Spencer Homes plans to purchase a

12

roadway lot that runs parallel to East Waiko Road

13

and which forms the northern boundary of the

14

subdivision as an access for the subdivision.

15

roadway lots will be purchased from Wailuku

16

Agribusiness Company.

The

17

Further, we would like to point out that in

18

discussions with the Waikapu community, as well as

19

the State Department of Transportation, it was

20

determined that as a traffic mitigation measure for

21

the subdivision Spencer Homes has agreed to

22

participate in the design and installation of a

23

traffic signal at the intersection of Waiko Road and

24

Honoapiilani Highway.

25

As proposed, the Waikapu Affordable Housing
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1

Subdivision will sell at least 51 percent of the

2

home lot packages in the subdivision at prices

3

affordable to families having an annual median

4

income of up to 120 percent for the County of Maui.

5

This would amount to approximately 214 homes.

6

PreliminarilYr the sales price for the home lot

7

package -- packages are estimated to range from

8

$225,000 to $285 r OOO.

9

home loan interest rates r prices may be adjusted

10
11

Given the current rise in

according to the HUD rate matrix.
It is also the intent of Spencer Homes to

12

sell up to 50 more homes at those same price ranges

13

to employees of the Maui County Police and Fire

14

Departments r public school teachers r family members

15

of any qualifying long-time Waikapu families r and

16

veterans.

17

We are coming before you today to ask for the

18

Council's assistance in working together to help

19

reduce the increasing demand for affordable housing

20

in Maui County.

21

Project is seeking eleven exemptions that will

22

provide assistance for the project which we feel

23

will not pose a threat to the safety or welfare of

24

the future residents or surrounding neighbors.

25

list of exemptions can be found in Section 5 of the

The Waikapu Affordable Housing
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201G application.
Briefly, the exemptions we are seeking are

2
3

from the community plan amendment and change in

4

zoning requirements, wastewater assessment fees for

5

facility expansion, an exemption from the current

6

Department of Public Works and Environmental

7

Management standards with regards to wastewater

8

laterals, various building permit fees, and

9

exemptions for the typical section of the Waiale

10

Road extension.

11

Spencer Homes intends to dedicate all roads,

12

including the improved Waiale Road section, to the

13

county of Maui upon completion of the subdivision.

14

The internal subdivision roads will be built to

15

County standards.

16

them.

17

It is also important to note that

No exemption is being sought for

At this time I would like to show a short

18

PowerPoint presentation that will provide you with

19

visual references for the Waikapu Affordable Housing

20

Subdivision, as well as photos of the proposed

21

homes.

22

in this brief PowerPoint presentation, which is

23

basically the project location, conceptual

24

subdivision plan, and the photos of the proposed

25

homes.

There are three things that I'll be covering
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Just to give you a regional reference, here's

1
2

Honoapiilani Highway.

3

this is the old alignment.

4

realigned and will basically follow along the

5

eastern boundary here of the parcel.

6

here.

7

Please note, again, that although this road -- we

8

will be purchasing the entire right-of-way, the road

9

will be completed only to this point to provide

10

Below is Waiale Road.

And

The road is being

Waiko Road is

This is our conceptual subdivision plan.

access to the subdivision.

11

The remainder of the road -- the road will

12

not connect to Honoapiilani Highway, and when the

13

road is dedicated to the County of Maui, that will

14

be a roadway reserved lot available so if the County

15

decides in the future or the neighboring parcels

16

decide in the future that they would like to connect

17

to Honoapiilani Highway for access, that option is

18

available to them.

19

We have one access point here for the

20

subdivision, one access point here, another here off

21

of the Waiale Road extension, and a final one here.

22

We'd also like to note that they are currently

23

considering traffic-calming devices for the internal

24

subdivision roads.

25

As I mentioned earlier, this is the park.
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1

Itls a linear park area of approximately 10.33

2

acres.

3

are familiar with, the reservoir will be fenced off.

4

As I mentioned, Wailuku Agribusiness will retain

5

rights to the water within the reservoir.

6

The reservoir parcel that 11m sure you all

And then just briefly, these are the various

7

models that are available, two-bedroom/two-bath.

8

And again, these -- you can see the elevations for

9

these models within the preliminary development

10

plans within your 201G applications.

11

smallest.

12

another three-bedroom/two-bath, a

13

three-bedroom/two-and-a-half-bath, and this is a two

14

story, a four-bedroom/two-and-a-half-bath, and

15

finally a four-bedroom/three-bath.

16

So this is the

Then we go to a three-bedroom/two-bath,

This concludes our presentation, and myself

17

or any of the consultants are now available for any

18

questions you may have.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you very much.

Members, if therels no objections, lId

20

like to continue on with the departments, having

21

information from those departments.

22

Members?

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Any objections,

Chairman.

Yes, Mr. Nishiki.
When are we going to be allowed to
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ask questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

As soon as all of the department has

done their presentation, then we'll have Q and A.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So you're going to have them all

sitting down here including the developer?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

As a question comes up for the

department, they'll come forward.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Okay.

At this time I'd like to call

10

upon the Director for Housing and Human Services,

11

Alice Lee.

12

MS. LEE:

Good morning, Chair, and Members of the

13

Committee.

The Department, as well as the

14

Administration, is in full support of this project.

15

As all of us know, there is a tremendous need for

16

affordable housing, and we believe that this project

17

will fill part of that need.

18

support.

Thank you.

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

20

MR. KUSHI:

21

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

22
23

We ask for your

Deputy Corporation Counsel Ed Kushi.

No comments.
Thank you.

Director of Planning,

Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY:

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, Members of the

24

Committee.

25

have been reviewing preliminary plans with the

Our review of this project
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1

Spencers and their consultants, our preliminary

2

review is not yet complete, but we will be

3

submitting a report to the Committee and to the

4

Council in the near future.

5

The primary advantage of this,. proj ect, as was

6

just stated by Ms. Lee, is that it will provide a

7

substantial number of affordable houses in the

8

Waikapu area in Central Maui.

9

the -- for the community.

That's a big plus for

And also the Waiale Road

10

extension will provide an excellent additional

11

access from Waikapu to Wailuku.

12

The concerns that the Department has and will

13

be describing to you in more detail are just two.

14

One, that was mentioned by Dr. Shepherd, this is

15

prime ag land and it's a very important area

16

separating waikapu from Wailuku.

17

tenants of the -- the Maui general plan is to keep

18

the community separate, not connect the communities.

One of the basic

19

And the second issue is that there will be a

20

substantial number of children added to the schools

21

by this project, and this is one of the most

22

overcrowded schools in Maui County already.

23

know what the -- what the position of the developer

24

is with respect to the DOE contribution.

25

know whether that's one of the eleven exemptions
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1

requested, but if a fee was paid to the Department

2

of Education, it would I believe exceed $2 million,

3

and if a fee isn't paid, that $2 million will come

4

from the taxpayers because the school is already

5

significantly overcrowded.
So our concerns are only, at this point, that

6

7

this is an important separation between Wailuku and

8

Waikapu and the schools overcrowded that will serve

9

this development.

10

questions?

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

14

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

15

Mr. Nishiki.

Thank you.

Are there any

I've got questions.

Okay.
But I'll save them.

You'll save it.

Thank you,

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

At this time I'd like to call on the Director

16

17

of Public Works and Environmental Management, Gil

18

Agaran.

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The

20

Department's comments on the project are contained

21

in -- in the project proposal.

22

I just wanted to emphasize.

23

that the exemption for the standards on Waiale Road

24

means that at some point the County will be having

25

to upgrade that when the time comes that it needs to

Just two points that

One is to understand
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1

be done.

What they are proposing right now is to

2

construct a road that is -- basically the same as

3

the lower portion of Kuikahi, which is the road that

4

comes down from Wailuku Heights.

5

the roadway basically below Alu and then across

6

Honoapiilani and down into the newer -- the newer

7

project down below.

8

curbs, gutters.

So it's basically

So it would be basically no

It will be grassways and a sign.

The other point that I wanted to point out is

9

10

we have been meeting with the developer after our

11

comments were made and they've indicated they're

12

willing to work with our Wastewater Division on

13

looking at the concerns that the division has with

14

the lateral standards.

15

available to respond to any questions that the

16

Committee has.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Agaran.

Mr. Tengan, Director of Water Supply.

18

19

And with that, I'll be

MR. TENGAN:

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

The Department at this

20

time doesn't have any comments other than to say

21

that the project will require about 250,000 gallons

22

of water.

23

can't make any other comments at this point in time.

24
25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

We haven't seen any detailed plans, so we

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Tengan.

Mr. Glenn Correa, Director of Public -- Parks and
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Recreation.
MR. BUCK:

Oh, Mr. Buck, instead.

Good morning, Mr. Chair.

The Department of

3

Parks and Recreation is -- has met with the

4

developer and we are in support of the project and

5

they met our conditions.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

from --

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Okay, representative

Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.
Yes, Mr. Kane.
I didn't catch the last part, what

11

about conditions, I'm sorry, can Mr. Buck restate

12

his comments?

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MR. BUCK:

Could you repeat that, Mr. Buck.
Thank you.

They've met their conditions as far as park

16

requirements going privately owned, privately

17

maintained.

18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

20
21

Okay, thank you.
Thank you.

Can I have a representative

from the Police Department to make comments.
MS. RODRIGUES:

Good morning, Council Chair and Members.

22

I just had a couple of concerns, and I actually made

23

it in written form to the Chief, and it's in regards

24

to

25

consideration the schools, the amount of traffic

if you'll make into detail, take into
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1

that's going to increase past the schools, as well

2

as -- okaYI I'll read it word for word.

3

On the low end estimate of about 820

4

additional vehicles traveling the roadway to and

5

from hpusing -- the housing area and that due to the

6

recent storm damage and closure of Waiko Road

7

without re-forcing it open in the near future

8

suggests another traffic study of the area be

9

conducted.

And of the routes leading into and out

10

of Waiko Road be conducted, as well as the traffic

11

leading to Wailuku Town, specifically in the area of

12

Wailuku Elementary School.

13

The following concerns should be considered

14

in addressing attempts to avoid both vehicular and

15

pedestrian traffic congestion within the

16

subdivision, also have that listed.

17

interested in reading it, page 35 of the traffic

18

impact analysis report, Number 6, summary and

19

conclusions, Number 1D states there will be no

20

driveways to and from the project along Honoapiilani

21

Highway.

22

reconsideration of the original plan as referred to

23

in Chapter V, page 90 of the -- of the reports that

24

you have that had a connection to Honoapiilani

25

Highway from Road A.

If you're

Highly said -- highly suggest
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Also Waiko Road will be the only immediate

2

route to and from Honoapiilani Highway that drivers

3

will use

4

the existing residents at the beginning of East

5

Waiko Road when the traffic directly in front of and

6

literally feet from their houses is increased by

7

several hundred vehicles a daYI as stated on page 36

8

of the traffic impact analysis report

9

summary and conclusions I 8 1 Number 8 1 and listed as

l

and there are concerns with the safety of

I

Number 6

10

a concern by residents at the community meeting

11

Chapter 5.

12

1

l

A traffic control light with the individual

13

left and right turns will be needed for Road A at

14

Honoapiilani Highway.

15

number 35 of the traffic impact analysis report

16

Number 6 1 summary and conclusions

17

project will generate 308 trips during the morning

18

peak hourI 77 in bound

19

misleading and also appears to be estimated on the

20

extreme low end.

21

be approximately 800

22

single family residential subdivision.

23

traffic impact study it appears as if a majority of

24

the subdivision1s residential traffic is anticipated

25

to be utilizing Waiale Road.

Number 41 as stated on page

l

and 231.

l

I

Item No. 21 the

This appears to be

Realistically the numbers should
1

considering this is a 400 plus
And per the

This also appears to
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1

be misleading because of the inconvenience and

2

unimproved state of Waiale Road.

3

avoidance and use of alternate routes by drivers

4

should be considered.

The possibility of

Getting back to Number 2, the following

5
6

concern should be addressed in attempts to avoid

7

both pedestrian and vehicle traffic:

8

widths should be considered wider than standard to

9

accommodate residential parking that will occur on

The roadway

10

both sides of the street while allowing for traffic

11

to flow freely both ends, and this is a safety

12

measure for both Fire and Police as well as medics,

13

allow for future bus stop areas, and the

14

installation of sidewalks, raised crosswalks, and

15

speed humps on all roadways.

16

on my submittal.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

18

MS. KAWAHARA:

19

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Can you state your name.

Lisa Ann Rodrigues.
Thank you.

And that's what I had

I'm sorry.

Okay, Kyle Ginoza,

20

Department of -- Director of Transportation.

21

Kyle here?

22

Chief Carl Kaupalolo.

23

MR. KAUPALOLO:

Is

Representative from the Fire Department?
Chief.

Good morning, Chair.

Thank you very much.

24

Good morning, Council Members.

25

Kaupalolo, Fire Chief, Department of Maui.

My name's Carl
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1

an opportunity to review the conceptual plans or

2

drawings that were submitted for the proposed

3

Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision project.

4

main concerns are the road widths and -- as related

5

to the fire apparatus needs and the fire protection

6

requirements.

7

on with the applicant during the permit process.

8

It's also my understanding that this subdivision has

9

multiple entries and exit points that will

The details will be worked out later

10

accommodate residents in case of an emergency to

11

evacuate the area.

12

Our

We'd also like to note that these -- this

13

particular project seems to be -- will provide some

14

affordable accommodations to our fire fighters that

15

need a home.

16

last season that we had was afflicted by fires due

17

to either suspicious in nature, and so this --

18

having this area developed would probably reduce

19

some of the suspicious fires that we've had or the

20

fires that we've had to have put out pretty close to

21

the residences that are there.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

And this particular area is -- this

Thank you, Chief.

Thank you.
That concludes the

23

department comments.

At this time I'd like to ask

24

the members if they have any questions for the

25

developers or any of the department heads.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

You might as well get them all

2

sitted down, Mr. Chairman, because there are a

3

myriad of questions, please.

4

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I'll take them one at a time.

5

Developer.

Mr. Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, thank you.

I'm going to

7

start with exemptions, and only because in the

8

processing of a 201G application, my fellow Council

9

Members, I'm sure that each developer that comes

10

through saying that they're going to develop an

11

affordable housing is scrutinizing the action of

12

this Administration and this Council.

13

in all fairness to developers, they want to make

14

sure they are being treated the same way, and each

15

developer coming in is scrutinizing this Council and

16

this Administration to make'sure that the game is

17

played fairly.

18

I think that

And why I say this is because when I reviewed

19

the Pu'unoa one, as you remember, for my own

20

personal review, I find that that project is not

21

really an affordable, and yet who knows what kind of

22

benefits each developer is being given.

23

to start now with this project, and only because you

24

don't do anything for free.

25

to lose money.

So I want

You don't do anything

And when you calculate a project,
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because you are in business to do this, you have to

2

look at what benefits you are getting so that your

3

costs are not beyond what benefits you get.

4

am talking about is this process, and now you're

5

getting eleven exemptions.

What I

When I asked a member of the Administration

6
7

this morning -- and I'm not going to recognize

8

whether it's a he or a she, and ask him what is the

9

total dollar value of the exemptions r they were

10

unable to tell me this.

11

developer -- and let me tell you, Mr. Chairman, I

12

was very disappointed, but let me ask you this.

13

a developer, have you identified the exemptions that

14

you are being given -- and you had mentioned

15

eleven -- and what that dollar value is that you

16

would be saving in this development?

17

sure that other developers would probably go for the

18

same.

19

My question to you as a

As

Because I'm

And let me ask you this also, but I will ask

20

it of this Administration and hopefully they have

21

done their homework.

22

will the taxpayers pay for when we finally have to

23

bring them up to County standards?

24

Police Department -- I thank the Police Department

25

for doing their homework, the Fire Department

Out of these exemptions, what

I know the
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1

somewhat, and Wastewater, we've not heard from you

2

yet, Parks either, but what have you as a developer

3

identified will be a savings if -- because you're

4

going through this process and not having to go

5

through the normal process?

6

MS. KAWAHARA:

Well

l

I can only answer on an estimated

7

value.

For example, we are asking for exemptions

8

from the building permit, and that value is based on

9

the valuation of the home, and that has not gone

10

through the process yet.

For example, when they've

11

calculated -- based on 410, they pulled out an

12

average on previous projects, and of course the

13

amount may change, but on building permit it's

14

approximately $700 per house.

15

$1,600.

16

the plumbing permit is about $90.

17

that I have missing from here and I can get for you

18

is the estimate on the grading and grubbing permit,

19

but my understanding is that is not a substantial

20

amount of money.

21

exemption comes out to 200 -- I'm sorry, $2,639.50.

22

When you mUltiply that by 410, which is the

23

estimated number of homes in the subdivision, comes

24

out to $1.082,195, so $1,082,195, and again that

25

does not include the grading and grubbing permit.

Sewer fees are about

The electrical permit is about $250, and
The one thing

The total, then, per house
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With regards to the Parks exemption, it's

2

really not an exemption that we are seeking because

3

Spencer Homes will be dedicating those 10.33 acres

4

of land.

5

privately maintain it.

6

know, really has no loss there.

7

wastewater laterals, you know, it's just a matter of

8

a single lateral versus double laterals.

9

be hard for me to estimate as far as the change in

They will be landscaping it and they will
So the Parks Department, you
With regards to the

It would

10

zoning, for example, our community plan amendment

11

process, you know, what a savings would be there.

12

Time wise, you know, could be anywhere from a year

13

to two years for the project.

14

Your second question I may need to ask the

15

civil engineer to step in.

16

to pay for to bring it up to standard?

17

understanding is that if Spencer Homes were to take

18

Waiale Road, for example -- now, they're purchasing

19

that whole section, as I pointed out, from East

20

Waiko Road to Kuikahi Drive, and they are going to

21

provide the base that is the County standard, the --

22

my understanding is the paving, you know, slightly

23

less and it's going to be paved shoulder, so there

24

will not be curb, gutter, and sidewalks.

25

What will taxpayers have
My

Now, by ordinance if Spencer Homes only
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1

improved curb, gutter, and sidewalks to their

2

portion of Waiale Road that only fronts their lot,

3

that cost would be about $900,000.

4

them to improve the total section of Waiale Road,

5

and this -- my understanding does not include the

6

cost of actually purchasing the roadway lot, just to

7

do the base course and then the asphalt on top is

8

$1.3 million.

9

savings to the Spencers in that case as well.

But the cost for

So there is no, you know, real

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

11

MS. KAWAHARA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

13

MS. KAWAHARA:

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

15

MS. KAWAHARA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So does that end?

Is -Are you done --

Yes.
-- with the savings?

Uh-huh.
Okay.

Now, In the area of

17

Parks -- so let me get back, because I'm trying to

18

be very thorough.

19

parcel.

20

MS. KAWAHARA:

21

You are donating a ten-acre

Well, I don't know that it's necessarily

being donated, but it --

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

23

MS. KAWAHARA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

25

MS. KAWAHARA:

Well, whatever.

Right.
It's your assessment.

Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Under the normal subdivision

2

standards, okay, if there was going to be paid a

3

number on the homes and the square footage to be

4

developed, land only, what would you be required to

5

put there if you chose to develop land only?

6

MS. KAWAHARA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

8

MS. KAWAHARA:

9

Based --

Based on the 410 units, I believe it's

about -- almost eight acres.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

11

MS. KAWAHARA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

13

What is your total acres?

Eight acres?

Yes.
So you're going over and above by

creating ten acres?

14

MS. KAWAHARA:

That's correct.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

When we call it a lateral park,

16

can you give me an idea of dimensions so that I know

17

it's just not a narrow strip in which perhaps you

18

won't be able to develop any facilities there?

19

MS. KAWAHARA:

I think I'll defer to the civil engineer to

20

give you the width.

21

portion -- you know, portion to portion, but

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

23

MS. KAWAHARA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

25

I know it varies from

Okay, I'll wait on that.

Okay.
Let me ask you this.

Under a

normal subdivision also -- let me put it in this
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manner.

2

process l you are also being exempted from fees that

3

would be normally charged of your market homes.

4

This is true l right

5

from your market homes in the exemptions given to

6

you?

7
8

9

In -- because you are coming through a 201G

MS. KAWAHARA:

Right.

1

you're getting exemptions also

We are looking at exemptions for

the entire project.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

FinallYI you mention -- not

10

finallYI but you also mention that out of the 200

11

plus homes that are affordable l do you have a

12

breakdown on what percentage homes fall in each

13

category?

14

what -- from 90 to 120 1 is that what it is?

15

MS. KAWAHARA:

Like I think you go -- you're going from

I believe it's

approximately.

yeahl

And

16

againl that will fluctuate based on the -- the

17

prices will fluctuate based on the interest rates.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah.

But you haven't identified

19

in each category 90 to 100

20

built.

21

provided for here by this Administration and I see

22

no breakdown on the homes.

23

that has been identified for each category so that I

24

know

25

be sold at the 120 median income, the highest?

1

how many homes will be

Because I looked with what I've been

Has there been a number

so that I know that they're not all going to
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MS. KAWAHARA:

My understanding is that the developer is

2

currently in discussion with the Department of

3

Housing and Human Concerns.

4

preliminary breakdown.

5

the developer will also be subject to providing an

6

affordable housing agreement which this Council

7

will, you know, be -- review as well.

8

like to hear --

9
10

11
12
13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

We do have a

However, there will also --

So would you

In its -- in its final version of

the application and approval?
MS. KAWAHARA:

Of the

of the affordable housing

agreement would be a separate item.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So you're asking us to approve

14

something perhaps in the future, whenever, of this

15

application without a final breakdown of what

16

you've -- will finally agree upon, yes or no?

17

MS. KAWAHARA:

It will be finalized.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

19

breakdown?

20

MS. KAWAHARA:

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Oh, there will be a final

Yes, it will be.
Okay, good.

So then this Council

22

may give its concern.

23

to do -- you know what, I can allow other members

24

for the developer, because I have more.

25

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA:

The other question I have has

Sure.

Member Carroll, any
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questions?

Member Mateo?

2

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

3

morning.

4

MS. KAWAHARA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman, yes.

Good

Good morning.
I guess welve heard the cost of the

6

affordables.

7

the marketables?

8

MS. KAWAHARA:

9

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Do you have an idea of the range of

Defer to you.
Good timing.

My name is Mark Spencer,

10

with Spencer Homes, and if I could, Danny, 1111

11

refer to a couple of Wayne's questions right now,

12

which are good questions, Wayne.

13

linear park, it does vary a little bit in width as

14

it goes through.

15

correct me if 11m wrong, about down to about 60 at

16

its narrowest up to over 100 foot.

17

important to remember that welre talking about 100

18

foot, and youlre right, Wayne, it's not just a

19

little 20-foot path that becomes an alleyway.

20

is a 100-foot wide, which is wider, well, than most

21

of the lots where I live, so it will be a large

22

grass area.

23

through there with landscaping with low level

24

lighting to go along it.

25

On the Parks, the

It goes anywhere -- and, Stacy,

I think it's

This

WeIll put a walking, jogging path

In addition to it, I think you saw -- I don't
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know if you can pull it up on the PowerPoint,

2

Karlynn, but on the -- on the track we actually are

3

responsible for buying the reservoir.

4

fence it, per our agreement with Wailuku Ag, so

5

there's no access to it, but we're looking at that's

6

a great area to have around our neighborhood, and

7

we're looking at incorporating a walking/jogging

8

path, again, fully open to the whole park system, to

9

the public, that would go around the perimeter of

We have to

10

the reservoir if we can -- if we can accomplish

11

that.

12

that that look a little tight, but we're looking

13

into that, you know, at least having it

14

three-fourths, but if we can, we'd like to go all

15

the way around the reservoir with a walking path

16

that we will be putting in at our expense as well.

17

There are some houses on the Waikapu side of

So, again, the exemption for the parks, it's

18

technically called an exemption.

We don't really

19

see it as an exemption, because we're getting over

20

the amount and we're landscaping everything.

21

as on Waiale -- and I think what Karlynn was trying

22

to explain to you is, again, first of all, we

23

don't in common sense terms consider that an

24

exemption, and our reasoning behind that is, first

25

of all, we're duplicating what the County did with
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1

the Kuikahi Road extension.

We actually took their

2

detail and are duplicating it for waiale Road.
In addition to that, we are purchasing the

3
4

land from Waiko all the way to Kuikahi.

We're

5

putting in all the bases to County standards so that

6

when they do go to bring it up to a collector road,

7

or whatever standard they want to bring it up to,

8

the base is all in.

9

out and redo everything.

There will be no having to rip
If -- what Karlynn was

10

referring to is if we just came in under the regular

11

process, we would only be responsible for the road

12

right in front of our project, which is about 2,600

13

feet,

14

process and we saw the need for the Waiale Road,

15

which my understanding is it's been in the County's

16

planning process for at least ten years, that they

17

want this regional road, from our perspective the

18

County is getting a road out of this.

19

cost for paving the whole thing and putting in all

20

the base is at least 400,000 over what we would have

21

been required to do just if we came through our

22

regular development.

23

I believe.

Because we're going through this

And so our

As far as -- I guess I'll go into -- get what

24

is probably the meat of this matter for you, Danny,

25

and for Wayne and for everybody, is the 51 percent.
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And, Wayne, I expected this question to come up,

2

because we didnlt identify different 90 percent,

3

100, 110 percent.

4

little bit what the

5

the problem of this process is for a developer, is

6

that these affordable homes are based on median

7

income which then gets broken down to a monthly

8

payment, which is then based on an interest rate.

9

If we had a crystal ball and we could tell us that

10

the interest rates are going to stay right at this

11

point for the next four or five years, the life of

12

this project, it would be really easy to come up

13

with a very precise agreement.

14

factor in is rising construction costs, which thatls

15

not as easy in the last six months as it has been.

16

And lId like to maybe go over a
for lack of a better word,

All we would have to

But because itls tied into an interest rate,

17

itls pretty hard to break down to 80, 90

18

percent -- I donlt know how other developers are

19

going to be available to do that, with the exception

20

of making their market houses truly market houses to

21

subsidize that.

22

his way and we could come to you and we didnlt have

23

to be tied into the median income, we would come

24

here and tell you what our price structure would be

25

for the entire subdivision, but we canlt do that

If my father, Jesse, if he had it
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because this 201G is based on this median income.

2

So with that in mind, what we have proposed is that

3

51 percent -- our legal agreement with you the

4

County will be 51 percent at 120 percent and below.

5

What we have looked at on that 51 percent --

6

and this is what our intent is right now -- is we

7

would start with -- at 225 for the lowest priced

8

house, and that is about 1,100 square feet of living

9

space.

These all have two car-garages, so when you

10

add in total covered space, you're over 1,500 square

11

feet.

12

three-bedroom/two-bath.

13

that's for a house that's about 1,500 square feet,

14

plus the garage, another covered space.

15

jump up to our first two-story, which is 255, and we

16

go to 265, which is about a 1,650 square foot house,

17

and then our top of the price structure would be 275

18

for a four-bedroom/three-bath with an additional

19

family room with a two-car garage, and that's over

20

1,700 square feet of living space.

21

garage and everything else, you're up to 2,260, I

22

believe.

23

The next price would go up to 235 for a
The next price is 245, and

That is our intent.

We then

When you add in

So if interest rates

24

stay like that, that would be our breakdown, and

25

we -- the breakdown would go something like --
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looking at my percentage, about 20 of the smallest

2

houses, 32 of the B model, 43 of the C, 43 of the D,

3

32 of the E, and then 43 of the -- of the last

4

model, again.

5

affordable.

6

rates start climbing, our top of that structure has

7

to come down.

8

rates go up to 9 percent -- and 11m going to take a

9

high end

So that is our intent for the
Now, what happens is once interest

And when I looked at -- if interest

on one end itls a high end, but I also

10

remember ten or eleven years ago paying 12 to 14

11

percent.

12

reports on interest rates are going rise, but then I

13

hear comments, well, theylll never rise as fast as

14

they did that one time.

15

on that as a developer, when youlve been paying

16

those interest rates in the past.

17

So every day I open up the paper and I see

Itls kind of hard to plan

At 9 percent our most expensive house would

18

have to sell for 230,000, and thatls based on the

19

HUD chart.

20

you what welre going to do with the market houses.

21

The market house -- I wish I could use a different

22

word besides market.

23

of this agreement are -- their prices will be

24

directly relative to what the interest rates are

25

because of what we have to sell these for.

And I talk about all this to try to tell

The not -- the houses outside
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1

interest rates stay the same, then the other 49

2

percent will

3

prices yet.

4

in from subs and everything else, but they will be

5

most likely still within the 140 percent range,

6

which the State considers affordable.

again, we have not established those
We still have to get all of our prices

We don't anticipate -- our most

7

8

expensive market house -- and I'm going to look over

9

at my father here for a nod

to probably over

10

get over 350, as long as -- as long as our afford --

11

as long as these interest rates stay the same.

12

again, I do need to put a disclaimer too that on

13

this construction costs right now, we hope they

14

stabilize, but right now they've gone up about 30

15

percent in the last six to nine months.

16

And

So, again, can I tell what you the market

17

price sales price are going to be?

18

do have -- actually if I could pass out -- in the

19

last week I did a last minute check.

20

know what, our last three subdivisions we did was

21

starting from the most recent to the latest in the

22

last six years was Piilani Village Phase III,

23

Piilani Village Phase II, and the Nanea project In

24

Wailuku.

25

those.

No, I can't.

I

I said, you

We had no restrictions on sales prices on
We had no government regulation on what we
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had to sell those for.

It's always been our company

2

philosophy that we look at what our costs are, what

3

we need to make to keep our company going, and then

4

we look to say, okay, will the market be able to pay

5

that price?
We don't look at -- to see, okay, what's the

6
7

most expensive we can sell this house for?

And in

8

turn I think what we've developed is a great

9

loyalty.

We have buyers that like to follow us to

10

go to different developments if they need a new

11

house.

12

and I took our three subdivisions, and if you look

13

here -- and, you know, just to make it simple, we'll

14

go to the total homes there on the right.

15

sold in the last six years -- where's the

16

percentage?

17

41 homes in the 80 percent or below of median income

18

level, 94 homes at 90 percent or below, 126 percent

19

at a hundred

20

and 50 homes at 110 percent and below.

21

that.

22

to a little bit of trust on that end of it, and I

23

know it's kind of hard in this environment, but with

24

the fact we were tied into interest rates in the

25

affordable, there is an element of that here.

I look back over the last five to six years,

We have

We have -- out of 311 homes, we've sold

126 homes at 100 percent and below,

Nothing over

You know, I guess part of this does come down
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1

with that, I'll open up to any other questions on

2

those prices.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

much, Mark.

5

MR. MARK SPENCER:

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

7

8
9

Okay, thank you.

Thank you very

Thank you.
So the higher end will be in the

area of 350,OOO?
MR. MARK SPENCER:

Well, again, I'm pulling that number

out right now not knowing what interest rates are

10

going to be, not knowing what construction costs are

11

going to be.

12

development where all of a sudden you might lose

13

five or six lots because of a new requirement that

14

comes in or something else happens on the site.

15

Insurance, in the last two to three years we went

16

from paying 10 to 17,000 a year to 160, 170,000 a

17

year.

There's other issues that come up in

18

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

19

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay, thank you.

There's things that have been happening

20

here that I cannot guarantee you where those prices

21

are going to be.

22

goal to make these houses affordable.

23

have

I was going to pull them up here.

24

have

I have a couple boxes of over 3,000 names on

25

this list, and a large -- a large part of those are

What I can tell you is it is our
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I mean, I can't go

1

people we know personally.

2

anywhere in town without somebody saying they're on

3

the list, you know, what do I need to do to get a

4

house?

5

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you, Mark.

And also the

6

affordable -- the affordable components, these --

7

you know, if you take a look at your subdivision --

8

your subdivision map, the affordable units, are they

9

all going to be based on lot size 4,500 square feet?

10

MR. MARK SPENCER:

11

consistent.

12

get a radius, sometimes you end up with a bigger

13

lot, and so we will probably save a few of those,

14

but for the most part they'll just be interspersed

15

allover.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

17

Our lots are pretty -- pretty
You know, where you get -- where you

So the larger lots beyond four-five,

that would be all -- more the marketable?

18

MR. MARK SPENCER:

19

five.

20

we?

21

feet so we don't drop into any -- we're not going to

22

be -- we're not going to be segregating the

23

affordable from the market, if that's really what

24

the intent is of the question.

25

I believe our smallest lot is about

I don't think we have any down at four, do
I think we're all about at least 5,000 square

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

Earlier when the
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1

Water Department came up, the comment was they had

2

no comment because they really hadn't had a

3

discussion with the developer in regards to the need

4

for water.

5

know, like what are your anticipations and, you

6

know, what are your expectations for water for this

7

project?

8
9

MR. MARK SPENCER:

As you continue your processes, you

Yeah, and I'm not sure if that's

exactly what -- what George meant by that.

We have

10

been in discussions with them.

11

place where we have agreed -- we will be paying the

12

full meter fee, which I believe is about 6,000 per

13

residential lot.

14

all 410 homes.

15

required to create storage.

16

agreement with Kehalani Development, who has a

17

million gallon tank under design.

18

that to add another 500,000 gallons to that.

19

addition to paying the meter fee, we have to come up

20

with that four or 500,000 in advance to put up to

21

build the storage before we can occupy homes.

22

In fact we're to the

That meter fee will be paid for
In addition to that, we're being
We have entered into an

We've added on to
So in

One of the comments in their letter is to

23

for us to participate in source development, and it

24

is our position that we can only do so much.

25

only do our part, and at some point
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1

what part of the meter fee is for, and that's what

2

we believe the Water Department should be working

3

toward.

4

know, to help out whatever we can, but to put the

5

onus on us to create source I think is a little -- a

6

little hard.

7
8

9

We will be cooperative toward them, you

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And tell me what the expected water

usage a day for the subdivision might be.
MR. MARK SPENCER:

I'm going to bring Stacy up for that.

10

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

11

MR. OTOMO:

Okay.

Good morning, Chair Pontanilla, Members of the

12

Committee.

13

George came up earlier he referred to a number of

14

about 250 gallons per day, and that's -- that's the

15

correct amount.

16

My name is Stacy Otomo.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I think when

The 250, then, a day, this is also

17

inclusive of your irrigation needs for the project?

18

Because you now have what will be a dedicated

19

parkway or a walkway or some kind of an area that

20

the developer would be responsible in maintaining.

21
22

23

MR. OTOMO:

That number does not include the linear park.

It includes the 410 residential lots.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

And your access, because the

24

developer also will be purchasing the area that is

25

inclusive of the reservoir, does the developer have
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access to waters from that reservoir?

2

MR. MARK SPENCER:

3

MR. OTOMO:

4

5
6

7
8

9

For the park.

For the park?

According to Mark, they do have

access to the water for the linear park.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Chairman, I have additional

questions, but I'll yield at this point.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you.

Member Molina, any

questions?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

10

guess a question for the developer.

11

Karlynn.

12

MS. KAWAHARA:

13

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

I

Good morning r

Good morning.
Good morning r Mr. Spencer.

My

14

question relates to like -- staying on the prices of

15

the homes.

16

original plan called for a starting point of about

17

roughly 185 r OOO r but now I guess in light of maybe

18

the cost of building materials and some of the

19

requirements that's being asked of you by the

20

CountYr the prices have now gone up.

21

price is 225 r OOO.

22

willing to still maintain this price?

23

you give us a timetable?

24

you know, we were being told today 225 r OOO.

25

you do get approval, then you will keep it at

I guess a little over a year ago the

The starting

Now r my question is are you
I mean, can

What will cause you to
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1

225,000?

2

later on down the road if an approval is given, then

3

suddenly applicants are told you're going to have to

4

pay a higher price now.

5

keeping the prices at what you're telling us here

6

today?

7

Because I'd hate to see something change

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Are you still committed to

My understanding with our -- with our

8

agreement with the County is we are

first of all,

9

we are forced to stay under the 120 percent.

So if

10

interest rates go up or cause -- I can't go over

11

that to begin with.

12

affordable, yes, we are committed to that.

13

know, one of the philosophical differences here is

14

do some houses subsidize other houses?

15

our goal not to have that happen.

16

again, let's go to that scenario that we go to a

17

even at 8 percent, I believe our highest house at

18

that point would be 256,000 in the affordable.

19

that point we would have to make a decision, you

20

know, whether we're going to have 225, 235 and maybe

21

the last two or three houses are all priced the same

22

at that 256, which means that they're helping

23

subsidize the lower ones, or how much of the

24

market

25

again, we'd like to have 410 opportunities for

As far as our lower end of the
You

And it is

Now, once --

market-priced houses will subsidize
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affordable housing, whatever -- you know, whatever

2

parameter we're going to call that.

3

to look at that as if interest rates go up, how do

4

we balance that out, but I think it's our intention

5

to have that starter house at 225.

6

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

So we will have

On another subject

7

the -- we heard from the Police Department and the

8

concerns from the Police Chief regarding the traffic

9

analysis.

Is it your intention, because of the

10

comments that's being shared by the Police

11

Department now and maybe possibly from some other

12

people, to have another analysis done?

13

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Well, first of all, I don't -- I

14

believe those comments were not from the Police

15

Chief.

16

patrol officer, which we need to take into account.

17

Where I have a little concern over, though, is where

18

a patrol officer is disputing and saying -- I

19

believe the comment was appears misleading.

20

again, you know, I'm not a traffic engineer either,

21

and I think it's a little bit of a strong statement

22

to say the numbers appear misleading from someone

23

who's not trained in that.

24
25

I believe those comments were from were a

And

We will continue to look at what the traffic
situations are there.

Again, I would -- if I could
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1

break off of this subject a little bit and get more

2

to the big picture of affordable housing/ we like

3

the fact that when we go to the Planning Department

4

or the Water Department or Public Works that we have

5

the people that are trained in that part of that job

6

to look at it to tell us -- give us their expert

7

opinion.

8

I think the

9

important/ but the one letter we got from the Police

I would encourage the Police Department
the comment from patrol officers are

10

Department was from a patrol officer/ and I would

11

think they have other personnel in their Department

12

to help give expert opinion on it.

13

So/ again/ I guess my answer is we will look

14

at it/ but we believe we1ve spent a lot of time and

15

expense to go through these traffic reports/ and I

16

don't believe they1re misleading.

17

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

And my last question for now/

18

Chair/ is the issue on the schools and the

19

Department of Education.

20

has gone on in discussions with the DOE because of

21

the concerns of the additional traffic?

22

know/ Wailuku Elementary School is -- the traffic

23

situation there already is somewhat congested in the

24

morning.

25

Can you share with us what

And as we

Can you share with us --

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Well/ I think we have two issues.
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have traffic and you have the capacity of the school

2

and the conditions there.

3

the conditions of the -- of our commitment to the

4

capacity of the schools.

5

father wrote that was in the paper the other day

6

that explained our position fairly clearly, is

7

that -- well, first of all, that issue won't be

8

coming before you.

9

Land Use Commission when we have to deal with the

10
11

And I can speak more on

There was a letter that my

That will happen at the State

Department of Education.
It is our position that if we get forced to

12

pay it, we will pay it.

And it's not -- it's not

13

our position that the schools don't need the money.

14

Our position is the way the State is going by taxing

15

this, it is a special tax that's put on this one

16

small group of people.

17

ago in Kihei.

18

anything towards schools.

19

have been going to school.

20

schools, it is our company's position that we should

21

be sharing that burden as a community, not to put it

22

on one development.

23

think you guys have talked about it -- of 49 houses

24

or less, they're not responsible.

25

that the State has recently decided to not go

I bought my house two years

I didn't pay.

I didn't have to pay

I've got three kids that
If we have an issue with

If you have a development -- I

I've also heard
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through the Planning Commission to put any teeth

2

into making developers pay.
So in answer to the question, if we have to

3

4

pay it, we will pay it.

We will be entering into

5

the discussions with the State to find out if

6

there's not a more equitable way for that burden

7

I think the comment -- one of the comments was that

8

Wailuku Elementary is already at a tough situation.

9

Well, if they're at a tough situation, it's all of

10

our problem right now, not just these new people

11

that are going to be moving in.

12

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you, Member Molina.

I have some

14

questions.

15

State affordable housing median income is 140

16

percent or less.

17

this

18

410 lots would not go beyond 140 percent median

19

income?

20

that interest rate really changes things drastically

21

as the interest rate starts to rise.

22

original intent to come before you with a 70 to 75

23

percent of affordable at 140 percent and below.

24

That's what we were preparing.

25

You mentioned that the -- for one, the

subdivi~ion

So what you said earlier, that
that's being considered, that the

No, I did not say -- again -- once again,

It was our

Just recently Alice's department decided that
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1

for the County, if they were going to support a

2

project, they only consider 120 percent and below to

3

be affordable.

4

go and change it at the last minute, and we said,

5

okay, you know what, we'll go 51 percent, again, for

6

our legal agreement, our binding agreement with the

7

County.

8

homes will be in that 120 to 140 percent.

9

more than that, but ...

10

That's why all of a sudden we had to

I anticipate well over 20 percent more

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Hopefully

The other question that I had,

11

you know, reading through the booklet here that the

12

project will be done in phases over a five-year

13

period.

14

phases that you're going to have and the number of

15

homes per phase.

16

Can you explain as far as the number of

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay, we don't have any of that

17

definitive yet, but most likely it will be done in

18

four phases of about 100 houses each.

19

the size we have been dealing with.

20

things that might be a good time to remind you is

21

this a big project for us.

22

small company.

23

that I believe we can provide this affordable

24

housing is we are the landowner, we are the site

25

contractor, we are the building contractor.

We normally

That's about
One of the

We are actually a very
one of the reasons
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1

there's only one profit level in there.

2

also means is we can only handle so much.

What that

When you said five years, dad was probably

3

4

squirming here, because he probably wants us to do

5

it in about three.

6

and I would say we're still trying to figure out how

7

we do the affordable part.

8

that we're going to be very aggressive on the

9

affordable while the interest rates are low.

We will do about 100 houses

Our feeling right now is

Where

10

we can get more people involved, we want to get

11

those houses sold.

12

where they have a small percentage of affordables,

13

sometimes I know they put those off for years.

14

will actually be the opposite.

15

aggressive getting the affordable part taken care

16

of.

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

So whereas in other developments

Thank you.

We

We'll be very

As far as the off-site

18

detention basin that's being developed by the

19

Kehalani Project District, do you have an estimated

20

completion date as far as when they're going to be

21

completing to accommodate your development?

22

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I'll have to refer that to -- Stacy, do

23

you have any information on that?

Yeah, I don't

24

have an update now.

25

substantial financial commitments that they have to

I know they have some very
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1

get done, that their contractor has to get done

2

because their development up above is contingent

3

upon it.

4

it doesn't go in, there's -- there's some real

5

serious problems with all the infrastructure and

6

houses being built already.

Our feeling is it will be in.

Again, if

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Even for your project?

8

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Our project will be so far behind

9

theirs we don't see a concern with that at all.

10

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

11

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay, fine.

Member Kane.

Thank you, Chair.

I believe

12

Ms. Kawahara had some additional comments to I guess

13

the Wailuku Elementary.

14

gone too far forward, but I noticed she wanted to

15

say something, so if we can get your additional

16

comments.

17

MS. KAWAHARA:

Maybe -- I hope we haven't

Actually, I just wanted to mention with

18

regards to the Maui Police Department comments,

19

you'll notice in Appendix F of the document, we did

20

include the letters that we received from the

21

various agencies as well as our responses to those

22

substantive comments, and so the response to the

23

Police Department from the developer is in the

24

application.

25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.
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1

MS. KAWAHARA:

So you can peruse that.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Mr. Chair.

Member Kane.
Thank you.

I guess I need to

I know Ms. Lee opened up her comments

5

understand

6

by stating that her Department as well as the

7

Administration is in full support of this project,

8

and then we had specifically two directors come up

9

and either say -- Mr. Foley's comments I believe

10

were that Planning is still working on comments to

11

be submitted, however, he gave us two oral concerns,

12

as well as Mr. Tengan making the comment that he

13

hasn't seen any detailed plans.
And so my comments are -- or my question is

14
15

we don't have everything in front of this body in

16

order for us to make a fully informed decision, and

17

yet we have an application that's before us.

18

Specifically, Mr. Foley said that he hasn't provided

19

a written -- written comments from his department

20

and Mr. Tengan stated that they haven't seen any

21

detailed plans, therefore, they're unable to make

22

any detailed comments.

23

understand how we can look at this.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

MS. LEE:

So maybe Ms. Lee can help us
Okay.

To clarify that, can you --

Mr. Chair, Mr. Kane, on May 14th the Planning
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1

Director did supply comments, and of course none of

2

the comments he made on May 14th were reflected

3

today, so apparently he came up with new comments,

4

perhaps in reaction to some of the testimony, but he

5

did have a chance to review the conceptual plans,

6

and all of the departments did.

7

this type of application, there are no details at

8

this point.

9

As you know, with

These are all conceptual plans.

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

So I guess my concern is based on

10

Mr. Foley's comments, specifically being the

11

Planning Director, that they're still working on

12

on written comments.

13

us if we're not going to have them in front of this

14

decision-making body today and/or tomorrow for this

15

Committee?

16

of a statement, Chair, than a comment, or a

17

question, but it just seems that this body should

18

have as much information, and if Mr. Foley pointed

19

out two concerns that he had initially and possibly

20

even more, you know, it's just unfortunate that that

21

information is not completed and in front of us for

22

this -- you know, this specific time.

What good is that going to do

And so that's -- and maybe that's more

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Mr. Kane.
I'm sorry.
I'll have Mr. Foley answer that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

HHS 7/6/04

1

67

question.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MR. FOLEY:

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

I just wanted to say

4

two things, one, the internal circulation of this

5

project has been significantly revised since we

6

started reviewing itt and the revision is generally

7

very good.

8

cul-de-sacs, which the Fire Department was concerned

9

about and we were concerned about with respect to

It previously had a very large number of

10

internal circulation, so we appreciate that -- that

11

change.

12

The second thing that I wanted to say,

13

perhaps this is a misunderstanding on my part, but I

14

thought we had 45 days to review this project and to

15

submit comments before the Council takes action as a

16

full Council.

17

required to have our comments done for today's

18

meeting.

19

informational meeting.

20

misunderstanding of the process.

21
22
23
24
25

My understanding is that we weren't

I thought this was a -- primarily an

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Maybe I have a

We have 45 days to make a decision on

this particular project, Mr. Foley.
MR. FOLEY:

Is that 45 days ending today or 45 days from

today or when does that 45 days expire?
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

The 45 days started Monday of last
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week.
MR. FOLEY:

Okay.

I'm not sure all the departments

understood that.

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

I didn't.

Yeah, Mr. Chair.
Mr. Kane.
From a -- as a procedural comment, it

7

would seem that because this body as a policy does

8

its -- does its work and its recommendation to the

9

full Council here at the Committee level, it would

10

seem appropriate to have all comments from the

11

departments contained within the final application

12

that we received last week Monday.

13

that hasn't happened.

14

can only, one, up or down in 45 days whatever is

15

submitted -- so right now what's in front of us

16

what we're voting on as a recommendation to the full

17

Council.

18

provided completed comments to this project, it

19

would seem -- well, I'm going to say it's

20

unfortunate that that's occurred, because now we're

21

dealing with making a decision without all the full

22

comments of the departments in front of us.

And so because we as a body

lS

And if we have departments that have not

23

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

24

MS. LEE:

25

And apparently

Exactly.

Ms. Lee.

Mr. Chair and Committee Members, we requested

comments from the departments back in May.
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1

the directors may have forgotten, but if you look at

2

the -- towards the end of the application booklet,

3

you will see all the departments have commented.

4

Not only have they commented, but all of us have met

5

with the developer three and four and maybe even

6

five times.

7

new information to the directors.

8

explanation I can think of that perhaps Director

9

Foley misunderstood the timing of this Committee

So this -- this is not supposed to be
Now, the only

10

meeting and deadline is because there was an

11

informational meeting on Pu'unoa not too long ago to

12

get feedback from the Council members, if you

13

remember.

14

at that time, and perhaps he was thinking this

15

meeting today was the same thing, not realizing

16

this -- this is it, this is the official application

17

process and we're on a time line now.

18
19

20
21

22

It wasn't really an official application

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Ms. Lee.

Members, any more

questions for the developer?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Can we have a short recess,

please.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I'm sorry.

Okay, if there's no

23

objections, we'll take a short recess and we'll

24

reconvene at about ten to, ten to 11:00.

25

RECESS:

10:38 a.m.
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10: 55 a.m.

1

RECONVENE:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

4

(Gavel)

The Housing and Human

Services will reconvene.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

OkaYI Mr. Nishiki.

Thank you.

I don't know who wants

5

to field this

6

statement that at the widest level of this linear

7

park it would be a hundred feet.

8

Mr. Chairman l is in lieu of what we know we have up

9

in that area and the County's been looking at

l

but I know that Mr. Spencer made a

My concern l

10

purchasing park space to just address the

11

community -- community's needs up there.

12

talking about another 400 families

13

Mr. Spencer would enlighten me and give me an idea

14

on if at the widest level of a linear park

15

take linear to mean long -- what can we

16

know l

17

anything of this sort for organized sports?

18

talking about passive.

19

l

We're

and if

dOl

and I
if you

as far as accommodating perhaps a ballfield or

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay.

Let me clarify that too.

I'm not

When I

20

said 100 foot

21

When it gets out to the reservoir

22

wider than that to the water's edge on this lower

23

side.

24

type areal though, Wayne.

25

with Wailuku Ag ourselves in relationship to the

l

that's in the linear part of it.
l

that's obviously

Still not what you would consider a ballfield
We are personally working
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1

ballfields, to work together with the County of Maui

2

to help make that happen outside of this proceeding

3

to get those County -- to get those Wailuku Ag ball

4

parks turned over to the County.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And that means that you -- when

6

you say working, for me, it's just words.

What do

7

you hope to -- well, I guess you realize that 400

8

residences have an impact on recreational, and that

9

to me is part of an infrastructure for a community.

10

So are you saying that you're going to put into

11

money or updating that ballfield because you realize

12

that 400 homes needs some kind of an area for

13

organized sports?

14

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I think there's two different types of

15

recreation, obviously, what we're talking about

16

here, there's passive and there's the organized,

17

what you're talking about.

18

system does and the path around there is going to

19

give a tremendous chance for biking, for walking,

20

for picnic tables.

21

amount of what's required from us.

22

own I would think should stand for this project.

23

What this linear park

It's well over the acreage
So that on its

What I offer to you is in addition to that,

24

we are working with Wailuku Ag at possibly

25

purchasing that land, turning the land over to the
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county.

My father has already jumped in there with

2

some of our guys about six to nine months ago.

3

saw some homeowners -- because Wailuku Ag owns that,

4

and so the ball playing families take care of those

5

fields.

6

machines and equipment and helped them fix up those

7

ballfields.

8

our commitment level is, it is to make sure those

9

parks -- it's to make sure those Wailuku Ag ball

We jumped in there with some of our

So, again, if that helps tell you what

10

parks become County ball parks.

11

us purchasing them, that may be an option.

12

He

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

And if that means

The other area of concern

13

is Mike brought up the fact that at one time you

14

were quoting 185, now it's up to 225.

15

perhaps you have no control over.

16

tried to get you to commit to some sort of figure,

17

okay, and then your answer or response was, well, in

18

lieu of interest rates, we don't know.

19

we're committed to 120 percent and below of median

20

income to address you coming through this County

21

process to qualify.

22

it down at 120 and below.

This is what

And I think Mike

However,

And I applaud Alice for keeping

23

I think if for myself personally, if this is

24

an affordable project, and I want to make sure that

25

it is truly affordable for those of us that live
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1

here in Maui County and work here, okay.

That--

2

that isn't the only thing.

3

philosophy or your policy -- and I hope that if this

4

doesn't ring true in 2004 and beyond, not what you

5

did before.

6

different situation.

7

his cost for materials in building his new home is

8

40 percent and more.

9

I still got to do my job as a decision maker and

You told me that your

Okay, that you did.

This is perhaps a

Dain mentioned already that

I realize this, okay, and yet

10

people in this community have put us in office.

11

still have the biggest concern of affordable housing

12

as one of the reasons, but it is not to say that you

13

run away from other responsibilities, such as

14

traffic or whatever.

15

We

So let me get back to the affordability part,

16

because if

17

put up pay for itself, this is what I am hearing you

18

say when you represent these statements, that every

19

home that we make welre not going to lose money on,

20

even at the low end, okay.

21

you what you bought the property for or whatever.

22

That's your business.

23

that I get affordables as part of this, okay.

24

other end, if I can get affordables, I don't care

25

what you charge, okay, but I want to get it to truly

if you don't make every home that you

And 1 1 m not going to ask

My business is making sure
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1

make sure that itls affordable in the affordable

2

end.

3

So I guess my question is -- and if lIm off

4

base, then tell me lIm off base, but with what you

5

represented to me this morning -- and I listened

6

quite nicely -- you said that thatls your

7

philosophy, making everyone pay for itself.

8

is not possible, have you ever looked at

9

telling you what to do or how to do it.

If that
not

Have you

10

ever looked at if the low end youlre not able to do

11

but there is another perhaps way of doing it, lots

12

only, self help?

13

familiar with it, and if you donlt know, then thatls

14

fine, because you guys are in the home building

15

business also.

16

or experienced that arena of lots only or self help.

17

Have you and can you comment on that area as a way

18

to address truly affordable?

And I donlt know if youlre

So I donlt know if youlve ever done

19

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay, let me go back.

20

back.

21

Mikels question earlier on the 185, and the basic

22

reason was when we first announced those prices,

23

obviously construction costs have gone up, but in

24

addition to that, those numbers were announced when

25

we were told by the Administration -- the past

Youlre right.

I want to jump

I think I missed that part of
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1

Administration and this Administration that their

2

goal was to waive even like water fees.

3

got into it with them, we realized, you know what,

4

they don't really have that power and that

5

authority.

6

came into play, so some of the things just happened.

7

No one's fault, but they just -- they couldn't

8

happen that way.

And once we

So some of the -- and, you know, Waiale

The other thing you mentioned, working

9

10

families, and I'll give you one example.

11

about 120 percent and below, but there is a need

12

outside of that, and I'll give you one example.

13

met with the Waikapu Community Association and the

14

Waikapu families three times.

15

young couple came up to me.

16

to school, had graduated.

17

Waikapu.

18

combined about 80, 82,000.

19

limit.

20

right now.

21

You talk

We

At one meeting a
They had both gone off

Her family was from

They had come back to Maui.

They made

Puts them over this

They -- there's nothing for them to buy

You know, there's one issue, can you qualify

22

for a house?

So, you know, can we qualify for a

23

house that's 450 or 500,OOO?

24

play the numbers and qualifYI but what I advise all

25

my friends is that's one hurdle.

They might be able to

The next hurdle is
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can· you make those payments every month for the next

2

30 years when our market slows down, when the hotels

3

cut back, and construction slows down?

4

it's great that, right, the dire need, let's look at

5

this 120 percent and below, but these other houses

6

we're going to be selling for, especially the ones

7

that go 120, 140 percent, there's a group of people

8

out there that can't buy a house right now or

9

shouldn't be buying a house right now.

So I think

As far as not losing money on each house,

10

that would be our overall philosophy if we

11

that's

12

could do it that way.

13

that's -- there will be houses in this project that

14

we will have to subsidize with other.

15

that agreement.

16

been actually very involved.

17

it right below us in Piilani Village at the

18

Meadowlands, and where I see the benefit of that is

19

the biggest hurdle for a lot of people's coming up

20

with the down payment money, and that's where I

21

see -- I was just talking to someone from Maui Nui

22

during the break that that -- to me, let's go to the

23

issue.

24

time, but how much money does it save to get that

25

down payment money?

We can't because of this.

So

We've come to

As far as the self help, yeah, I've
They did a section of

It's not so much them putting in work and

So that's probably the issue we
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need to look at.
We actually were quite helpful to them.

We

3

supplied equipment, machines,

4

favor to go and help them with some of their

5

projects there.

6

carefully.

7

help projects have afforded some people a chance to

8

buy a house.

9

product and our product are completely different.

Again,

just, you know, as a

I want to state this

I think that has -- that has -- the self

What I would present to you is their

10

It's night and day.

11

our community and you drive through that,

12

they're still left with all the landscaping to do,

13

which I live right there, and there's houses there

14

for two or three years that still don't have their

15

landscaping in.

16

sidewalks from the driveway to the front door, you

17

know, but what I see what they do is they create a

18

way to get somebody into a house that can't by

19

getting rid of this down payment by work equity.

20

You know, if you drive through
I mean

They don't even get I believe

So we will continue to look into different

21

sources, and as I was talking to the lady here, you

22

know, we'll work with the financial institutions if

23

there's ways that they can get rid of these down

24

payments to help some of these families that just

25

can't come up with that, but as far as getting into
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1

a self-help situation, no, that's not something that

2

we would pursue.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

4

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Lots only?

I don't know if we can -- again, I

5

don't know as far as this process what we can be

6

agreeing to on that.

7

tell you it's a market right now, they can make

8

money just selling lots, and that's a great way to

9

go, because you have no warranties, no call backs.

10

The hard part is getting that end product into the

11

hands of the people that need it, and not everybody

12

has the resources or the desire to go through the

13

process.

14

get a construction loan, and I think there's some

15

other problems that come up.

16

Most developers right now will

If we sell lots only, then they have to

So we would consider it.

I mean, it's not in

17

our game plan right now.

And again, I think it

18

would just be really tough to truly keep them

19

affordable.

20

our past developments is it's almost like we're

21

building the house just to make the sale.

22

don't think there's a whole lot of -- once again,

23

I'll go back to my comment about us being the

24

developer, the site contractor, and the building

25

contractor.

The way we've looked at this before in

That's one profit level.
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1

start bringing in now another builder, unless

2

they're going to go truly as owner builder, you've

3

got another profit level on there.

4

overall, no, that's not our -- not in our plan to

5

sell lots only.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So I would say

Yeah, I guess -- I guess in lieu

7

of the lower end housing -- and I don't know how

8

Alice would look at it if it's a possibility.

9

trying to be as flexible as possible without choking

10

you guys, but at the same time I'm looking at venues

11

that you may not have thought about and that we can

12

address it and say, well, that can possibly be in

13

there because now they can go owner builder.

14

know that -- of many families that for whatever

15

reason they cannot finance a house or cannot buy,

16

and I don't know what these prices are, that that's

17

the only way that they've been able to get it,

18

but

19
20

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I'm

And I

Well, and that's been because the lot

prices -- you know, the house pricing are so high.

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

22

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Right.

And again, I think if we can keep this

23

product marketed affordable, it takes away that

24

position where you have to go that route, which

25

and I've been there.

I've had to do the same thing.
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1

I can't -- I couldn't afford to go buy a house at

2

market.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah.

And I depend upon somebody

4

like Alice that crunches numbers to say that could

5

be a solution for many people.

6

I depend upon.

7

to you, but you've not answered except that that

8

could be a possibility.

9

those experiences, as Alice may have.

10

You know, that's who

So I just thought I'd throw it out

And you may not know of

The final -- not the final but the other

11

question I have in the area of what you represented

12

today, you mentioned that you -- well, you didn't do

13

it, your representative did.

14

something about -- she used the word 50.

15

don't know whether it's 50 homes or 50 percent

16

outside the affordable was something that you

17

represented you were going to look and you

18

specifically identified these kinds of people,

19

school teachers, policemen, firemen.

20

She mentioned
And I

And I don't know if that was a sincere

21

effort, but that's what you said, so I don't know

22

why that certain group was mentioned.

23

need to qualify that and what was your

24

representation in regards to these people that work

25

in these occupations?

And maybe you

You're going to create a
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1

special area so that these people can buy homes

2

because they're like a core group of people that

3

teach our kids, that protect our community, that,

4

again, catch the vandals or whatever, the crooks?

5

What was that representation and what was that 50

6

percent?

7

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Well, and that did come from community

8

needs.

You know r we hear -- we read the stories too

9

about police officers leaving the island, about

10

teachers having a hard time making it.

11

college professor by his -- by his education, but he

12

got to where he felt like he had a tough time

13

supporting five kids on a college salary, so that's

14

when he

15

so it's always been kind of a desire to -- what we

16

have found as we have identified some of these

17

groups, that list keeps growing.

18

people in need here.

19

Dad is a

one of the main reasons he got out of it,

There's a lot of

I guess to sum it, as we look at some of the

20

groups like the police officers, the

21

the teachers that are on a set income, especially

22

the teacher, there's no overtime, there's no chance

23

to make money outside.

24

extra hard and I'd be really -- and I'm really

25

efficient on the job, I can maybe make a little bit

especially

In my business, if I work
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more money.

2

like to try to take care of the teachers.

3

identified the police officers! the firemen.

4

They can't do that! and so we would
We've

The other areas! we do want to keep this area

5

in Waikapu! and so as we've met with the community!

6

we want to open it up to -- and again! I don't know

7

how we'll qualify that! but long-time Waikapu

8

families for their offsprings that we've been

9

talking to that want to come back to Waikapu and

10

there's no place for them to go there! so that's one

11

of the other communities we've made a commitment.

12

We found that we could not really do that in

13

the lottery system! so we've had to commit to that

14

outside of that.

15

number 50 Karlynn pointed out is flexible.

16

know! I've got -- we've got to go back and -- you

17

know! dad has told personally to people that if you

18

don't get in the lottery! I'll get you one of these

19

houses at the same price outside of that.

20

have -- and those have been like teachers and some

21

of those people that he's talked to personally.

22

that's a commitment we've made.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And even that number -- even that

Okay.

You

So we

And

So that lottery would be

only for those in the affordable area?
MR. MARK SPENCER:

Right! and I don't know how I'm going
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2

to handle the balance.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And that -- and that -- and that

3

selection process, just because people want to know,

4

is going to be done for the affordables via a

5

lottery?

6

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Via a lottery.

And I'm -- actually,
It sounds

7

again last week started checking into it.

8

easy.

9

started trying to figure out how do we do a lottery

We've been saying the word lottery.

I

10

of 3,000 names?

11

calls, talked to an affordable developer on the east

12

coast trying to find out is there even just a system

13

to do that?

14

have not been called through to make sure those are

15

affordable buyers, okay.

16

company.

17

is right now we're going to put all these 3,000

18

names in the lottery.

19

And I started making some phone

I want to clarify too, the 3,000 names

And again, we are a small

We don't have a big staff.

My -- my guess

And what I've told certain people -- we had

20

an affordable housing sign-up day, and when I

21

explained to them under Piilani Village, if we had

22

114 houses and you were number 140, you probably

23

didn't have a chance because they were priced so far

24

below market nobody would back out.

25

same number here, you're guaranteed to get one

If you're that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

84

HHS 7/6/04

1

because a lot of these names that we have, people

2

have, you know, filled out applications, are going

3

to be making way too much, you know, so -- but our

4

guess is right now we're going to put all of them

5

into a lottery.

6

down through the list, see if they

7

qualify income wise.

8
9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And then as we go

start going
if they

So is that an agreement with the

County, because you're going through the County

10

process, that this is acceptable and they're going

11

to allow you to do the lottery?

12

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I would -- I would love to work with

13

Alice or someone who has some expertise in a lottery

14

to help us.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

16

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay.

And I would also be open to advice as

17

do we need to take a step back and call through

18

these now and separate and get people qualified

19

before we do the lottery?

20

time we've gone through this type of procedure, so

21

I'm open to any input we can get.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

Again, this is the first

Just because we touched on

23

traffic and maybe there may be a difference of

24

opinion -- and I didn't want to see this debate go

25

on, but just a basic simple question in regards to
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traffic and 400 homes.

I know that pretty much

2

today if there are two people living in a household

3

working, those two people have cars, okay, not to

4

mention offspring or father and mother or whatever

5

in a family these days, but -- or sister or brother

6

or who knows what else, girlfriend, boyfriend.

7

question to you is in your calculation of traffic,

8

the basic single-family structure that you provide

9

there, what does the person making a study determine

10

in your calculations how many vehicles fit in a

11

home?

12

MR. MARK SPENCER:

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

14

MR. MARK SPENCER:

15

My

Okay, I'm going to call
Can you give me --

Yeah, I'm going to call Phillip up, if

I could.

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

17

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay.

Phillip Rowell is our traffic engineer,

18

and I'll just state before he comes up here, you

19

know, it was referred to -- and I talked to a police

20

officer at the break --

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

22

MR. MARK SPENCER:

That's all right.

My wife and I, we have two cars at our

23

household, and I don't believe we've ever -- I've

24

ever seen us driving out in the morning at the same

25

time.

So I know, Phillip, they use certain formulas
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through national organizations to figure out when

2

those peak times, how many cars in that house, but

3

I'll let him talk about that.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

5

MR. ROWELL:

Thank you.

Okay.

Good morning.

My name is Phillip Rowell.

6

I'm the traffic engineer that prepared the traffic

7

impact study.

8

want to know how I estimate the amount of traffic

9

generated by this project during the peak hour; is

10

11

So I understand your question, you

that correct?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Well, let me start from a basic

12

concept.

13

what is your calculation on how many cars that

14

family owns?

15

MR. ROWELL:

When you look at a single-family dwelling,

Candidly, I don't deal with how many cars are

16

owned by that household.

I deal with how much

17

traffic that single-family unit will generate over

18

the day and during the peak hour.

19

so many variables because you might have a husband

20

and a wife, you may have a teenage child, so the

21

number of cars in that household doesn't affect the

22

traffic as much as it affects the parking demand.

23

In terms of the amount of traffic during a

Because there are

24

peak hour that a project generates, the Institute of

25

Transportation Engineers has a trip generation guide
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book, trip generation rates for various land uses,

2

and even with the single family it's divided into

3

categories, but the most used parameter for

4

single-family houses is number of dwelling units.

5

And during the peak hour, a single-family unit will

6

generate 1.01 trips per unit, and that's total in

7

and total out, so if that helps answer your

8

question.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, let me ask you in the

10

cumulative outlook on this basic premise, do you

11

take into consideration whether a municipality has

12

public transportation or doesn't?

13

MR. ROWELL:

Yes.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And also that many of the family

15

members probably work, and finally many of the

16

family members probably work one and a half jobs.

17

MR. ROWELL:

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

19

MR. ROWELL:

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

21

22

Correct.
Okay.

This is here in Hawaii.

Well-And it's tough, but that's what we

pay to live in paradise.
MR. ROWELL:

Okay.

Well t just let me maybe add a little

23

bit to that.

The single-family detached dwelling

24

unitt which is what we used for this trip generation

25

analysis in this study, is your highest trip unit
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generator of all the residential uses.

2

public transportation, we have to do a separate

3

study to determine -- or estimate, rather, how much

4

of those residents will use public transit.

5

yes, if there's a public transportation that's the

6

subject of a separate study, that has to be factored

7

in the study.

8

public transportation in this project.

9

If there's

So,

We did not assume there would be any

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And what about the kind of people

10

that live within this community, knowing that many

11

of us have two or more jobs so we drive quite

12

frequently and we drive

13

MR. ROWELL:

Well, as I said, the single-family unit --

14

detached unit is your highest trip generation

15

trip generator of the residential categories.

16

I found in a number of residential communities -- in

17

fact Piilani Village is one that I counted to

18

estimate the amount of trips per unit and verify

19

that number, and it came out -- came in right on

20

that number.

21

came in just under 1.

22

purposes, we're fitting in the trip generation rates

23

that I use, so I'm prettying comfortable using that

24

1 and saying it's pretty accurate.

25

Our number is 1.01.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

What

The study I did

So for all practical

I'll allow other, Members,
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2
3

4

Mr. Chair.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Member Carroll, questions?

Member

Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman.

Chairman, thank you.

I

5

guess we're going back to the developer and just ask

6

him to once again clarify their drainage plans

7

relative to additional subdivisions that will be I

8

guess planned and projected and ongoing directly

9

across of this particular project.

10
11

MS. KAWAHARA:

Okay.

At this time I'd like to defer to

the civil engineer

12

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

13

MS. KAWAHARA:

14

MR. OTOMO:

Thank you.

-- to respond to that question.

Good morning, Stacy Otomo again.

To answer

15

your question, what the developer has done was he

16

did a coordinated effort with Stanford Carr and Town

17

Homes where they have a drainage system basically

18

from the Kehalani project district that goes down

19

pretty much parallel to Waiale Road, and makai of

20

this particular project they're planning a fairly

21

large detention basin which has an emergency spill

22

way into Waikapu Stream.

23

done was he coordinated our drainage requirement

24

with theirs.

25

basin would get enlarged as well as the outlet

What the developer has

So bottom line is that the detention
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1

structure to Waikapu Stream is going to be enlarged

2

to accommodate this particular project.

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

4

able to

5
6

7
8

9
10

MR. OTOMO:

And that retention basin will be

what is the capacity?

It's sized to take the 100-year, 24-hour

storm, so it's a large event.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

So it's not going to impact waters

going into the immediate stream, then?
MR. OTOMO:

No.

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

Thank you.

And then I

11

guess -- I guess the other question would be

12

relative to a comment made by one of the prior

13

testifiers relative to soil evaluation, et cetera,

14

because of the prior ag use of the property, so I

15

guess I don't know who would answer this question.

16

MR. OTOMO:

I'll let Karlynn answer that question.

17

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

18

MS. KAWAHARA:

Thank you.

The developer did hire Vuich Environmental

19

to perform a phase I environmental study on the

20

lands, so my understanding is that nothing

21

significant was found in that report.

22
23

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And that is all -- on

all of the 94 acres?

24

MS. KAWAHARA:

I believe they took selected samples, yes.

25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you.

And I guess my last one,
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then

2

received from DLNR relative to their comments

3

specifically their

4

archeological monitor for the project site

5

comment on that?

6

l

would be if you can comment on the letter you

MS. KAWAHARA:

Yes.

I

more

their I guess request for the
l

can you

The State Historic Preservation

7

Division did approve the archeological inventory

8

survey report that was prepared for the project.

I

9

believe the approval letter was received in May.

As

10

a follow-uPI State Historic Preservation Division

11

or SHPD, was also one of the agencies that received

12

the 201G application for comment.

13

approval letter from

14

archeological monitoring plan should be submitted.

15

That plan has been prepared and submitted to SHPD

16

for review and comment

17

from them either waYI if we need to revise or if the

18

archeological monitoring plan is approved soon.

19

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

21

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

SHPD 1

l

In the previous

they had noted that an

and we're hoping to hear

I

Thank you.

Thank you.
Thank you

Member Molina.
1

Mr. Chairman.

I have a

22

question related to the wastewater assessment fees.

23

I guess there seems to be I guess a difference of

24

opinion from the Public Works Director and the

25

applicant.

I guess you folks are saying that the
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assessment fees are considered a contribution,

2

whereas the Director is maybe questioning that.

3

Could I get some comment at least from your side?

4

I guess I need a little more clarification

MS. KAWAHARA:

In terms

are you mentioning in term of

5

from you.

6

the -- not in terms of the sewer laterals that we

7

are requesting the exemption from, this is just the

8

fees itself?

9

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Yeah, I'm making reference to the

10

letter from Mr. Coloma-Agaran, Question 11, and I'll

11

just read verbatim what it says.

12

paragraph 3, The developer states that they will pay

13

the normal sewer fees currently being assessed by

14

the County and that these fees may be considered as

15

a contribution to be used to upgrade the existing

16

sewer systems.

17

the wastewater assessment fees, then the statement

18

that the fees may be considered as a contribution to

19

be used to upgrade the existing facilities is an

20

error.

21

on that.

22

MS. KAWAHARA:

The -- page 51,

And if the developer's referring to

So I just wanted to get some clarification

Yes, we met with the Department of Public

23

Works and there is a difference.

24

assessment fees for the improvements to the

25

Kahului-Wailuku Wastewater Treatment Plant you'll

The wastewater
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1

notice is within our exemption list now.

2

if you note comment -- let's see, Comment No.5 from

3

the Department, developer's required to fund any

4

necessary off-site improvements to collection system

5

and wastewater pump station.

6

response on the next page to that comment, the

7

developer did acknowledge that necessary off-site

8

improvements will be paid for by the developer for

9

wastewater.

10

11

However,

And if you notice our

So this is -- I guess it's two separate

things.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

And now, have you -- you haven't met

12

with the Wastewater Department yet, though.

13

you had any other meetings with them as well?

14

Because I know the Director this morning mentioned

15

that --

16

MS. KAWAHARA:

17

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

18

MS. KAWAHARA:

19

20

Have

I believe --- (inaudible)

I'll defer to the developer on that,

because he did meet with the Wastewater Division.
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

21

Mr. Spencer, I'm just trying to get more clarity on

22

this --

23

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I'm glad you asked, because we did meet

24

with them.

We met with them earlier and then I

25

actually met with them as recent as this last
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1

Friday.

As far as the lateral issuer we resolved --

2

without getting real -- into the technical r because

3

it really just becomes a construction issuer is the

4

CountYr where there was a double lateral r I guess in

5

the past has experienced trouble collecting if

6

there1s blockage in the line -- if there1s blockage

7

in the liner it1s the responsibility of the

8

homeowner.

9

responsibility of the Department itself.

If it1s a break in the liner it1s the
When there

10

was a blockage and there was a lateral that comes

11

out and then it branches off to two r they expressed

12

concern that they had had problems in the past with

13

trying to collect r not knowing who caused it.

14

they had changed this internal policy to require

15

single laterals.

16

down the streetr every house will be served with

17

their own lateral.

18

So

So as your sewer main line runs

As a developer r number one r it1s costly.

19

Number two r I kind of have a theoretical problem

20

with that toor because you have more connections in

21

your main line.

22

we met with them and said r you know r what is the

23

problem?

24

financial part.

25

that we will be following up on that.

And so in talks in the subdivision

So they expressed the problem r the
So we made an agreement with them
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1

the homeowners association be the billing

2

responsibility.

3

there's a concern who to bill if it's a double

4

lateral, they'll bill the association and the

5

association will split that between the two.

6

association has a little bit of teeth, you know,

7

whereas the County, sometimes it's kind of hard to

8

go after somebody.

9

satisfied with that and so they said they would work

10

The

So they were -- they were

with us to design that.

11

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

13

So if they have a blockage and

questions?

Okay, thank you.
Thank you.

Thank you, Chairman.

Any other members has any

Mr. Hokama, questions for the developer?

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

15

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

More for the Department, please.

Thank you.
Yeah.

Mr. Nishiki?
I don't know if this is the

17

last letter that the DOE sent, Mr. Chairman, and it

18

is found April 29th, 2003.

19

Karlynn, that the developer sent -- or rather that

20

the DOE sent with you signed by Raynor Minami?

21
22

23

MS. KAWAHARA:

Is that the last letter,

Let me just refer to that.

That's the

previous section.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Oh, God, I don't know how to

24

oh, chapter 6, agencies consulted during the

25

preparation of the project assessment report.
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1

there one that's later?

2

MS. KAWAHARA:

I do not believe there is.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

4

MS. KAWAHARA:

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I know that --

Okay.

Okay.
And it starts with, Dear

6

Mr. Munekiyo, This is in response to your letter

7

dated April 5th, 2003 concerning a residential

8

project being proposed by Spencer Homes, Inc. in

9

Waikapu.

The children living in the proposed

10

project would most likely attend Wailuku Elementary

11

School, lao Intermediate, and Baldwin High Schools.

12

Wailuku Elementary has a capacity for 1,110

13

students, and its enrollment this year -- this was

14

in 2003 -- is 934.

15

1,076 in 2007.

16

645 and currently has an enrollment of 887.

17

take it that we already have a school that has over

18

capacity.

19

expected to be 898 in 2007.

20

Enrollment is projected to be

lao Intermediate has a capacity of
So I

Enrollment into lao Intermediate is

Baldwin High School has a capacity of 1,467

21

and its current enrollment, this was in 2003, is

22

1,707.

23

expected at 1,811.

24

students generated by the 400 single family homes is

25

approximately 112 in elementary, 57 in middle, and

Baldwin High enrollment in 2007 is to be
Our projection of the number of
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2

62 in the high school.
Spencer Homes' proposed project would impact

3

area schools that are already beyond capacity or

4

close to capacity.

5

enrollment is projected to be very close to

6

capacity.

7

Spencer project would take it over capacity.

8
9

By 2007 Wailuku Elementary's

This addition of children from the

lao Intermediate is projected to be 39
percent over capacity in 2007.

With an addition of

10

the Spencer project, it would be 48 percent over

11

capacity.

12

capacity in 2007.

13

Spencer project would make the enrollment 28 percent

14

over capacity.

15

Baldwin High is to be 23 percent over
The additional children of the

The Department of Education is not in a

16

position to consider granting exemptions or

17

otherwise waiving its fair share contribution.

18

Affordable housing units are subject to the DOE's

19

fair share requirement.

20

directly to the schools that are impacted by any new

21

residential development.

22

fair share contribution as a one-time only

23

collection to offset the cost of increased

24

enrollment for many years in the future.

25

no guarantee of funding from any other source that

The funds collected go

The DOE is dependant on
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1

can be used directly by the schools to cover the

2

expenses of the increase enrollment.
We appreciate your solicitation of early

3
4

comments on your proposal.

If you have any

5

additional questions, contact Heidi Meeker of the

6

facilities and support branches, and then it's

7

signed Raynor Minami, Director of Facilities and

8

Support Branch.

Also sent to Rae Loui.

It says here that the funds collected go

9

10

directly to the schools that are impacted by any new

11

residential development.

12

And I don't know if that is truly a fact today, but

13

if that is a fact, I have some concerns of

14

statements made earlier by the developer's

15

representative about, well, we don't feel that it is

16

fair.

17

See, I didn't know that.

I guess when I look at a development, if

18

there are any other impacts that are going to be

19

caused, then ultimately this is a way in which we

20

get a fair share contribution.

21

that it's a fair policy, but it is a policy.

22

developer to not want to take that responsibility, I

23

guess it's a concern of mine.

24

from the developer if you have an impact on a school

25

system that is already failing and now you're going

And nobody's saying
For a

So I want to hear
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1

to impact it by a development adding more students

2

to an already failing school that now will have more

3

pupils there and create an impact, I think all of us

4

here would not want to see our school system degrade

5

itself, including those that move there to have

6

their kids go to school where they're not having a

7

good environment.

8

of seeing these kind of impacts occur?

9

MS. KAWAHARA:

How do you address your concern

Well, I think the, you know, developer

10

and I'll let him expand on his thoughts more, but,

11

you know, they have said that they are willing to

12

pay the fee.

13

up with a formula now depending on where your

14

development is, and the prices vary from region to

15

region, even island to island, their justification

16

being that construction costs vary from location to

17

location.

18

The Department of Education has come

Right now the -- I don't know the exact -- I

19

can't give you the exact number of what the fee is

20

per house, but it's approximately $5,000 per house

21

that the DOE is asking to collect.

22

think principally the developer has a problem with

23

paying the assessment.

24

that it should be a shared burden as opposed to

25

making this -- making it, you know, this special

And I don't

It's more of the philosophy
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1

group where we're trying to make affordable housing,

2

you know, unfortunately that adds to their cost, but

3

these -- this group should specifically be targeted.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, and let me explain to you --

5

Riki or Dain may know more about this, or who else

6

because I've got -- we've got one former educator

7

here, another one here, Charmaine number three, how

8

many educators we have in this Council?

9

know, it's like we know through -- via the State,

But, you

10

what percentage of that State budget -- I think it's

11

close to 50 percent, Riki, or if I may venture to

12

speculate a little.

13

great amount of money already as taxpayers to

14

support this educational system.

15

you, if we don't get them at an early age and give

16

them the best, we know what we .face at a late age,

17

okay.

18

I mean, we as taxpayers pay a

And let me tell

So for anyone wishing to be part of this

19

community, I think that despite that we may differ

20

on how our systems are run, and I differ, I still

21

think that besides money I don't know what other

22

resources can create a better system other than

23

re-overhauling, perhapsr the system and we've seen

24

that battle by those people that are either

25

supporting the Governor or against the Governor r but
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2

that's besides the point.
I'm saying that those of you that plan to put

3

more pupils into our community, and reading this

4

concern, I think concerns myself and many of us as

5

decision makers as to how you look at what is

6

perhaps an unfair or fair requirement.

7

to see somebody participate and not fight it.

8

think it is totally irresponsible if you're going to

9

fight it.

10

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Let me clear it up again.

I just want
I

I think what

11

my statement was at first, Wayne, is that if the

12

State forces us to pay it, we will pay it.

13

think what our issue is more of a bigger issue.

14

First of all, when you look at the number of kids,

15

that's -- that's assuming a certain ratio of kids

16

are going to move into the neighborhood, and there

17

probably will be.

18

families.

19

multi-generational living that's going on right now,

20

because a family can't afford a house so they're

21

living with their parents.

22

And I

I mean, we love selling to young

It maybe doesn't take into account

There is the issue of fairness as a

23

community, where if we're looking at who is

24

impacting the schools, I'm sure we don't want to

25

have a tax on babies, we don't want to have a tax on
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1

people moving here with their kids, to pay a $5,000

2

fee once they land on this island.

3

issue is more of a bigger issue with the State, and

4

maybe what we're looking for is for some support on

5

this.

6

So I think our

We've had -- I've had to educate myself on

7

this educational system.

And one of the things I

8

found out, with all the arguments going on with

9

local school boards, the one thing that I see that's

10

been missed is where our funding comes from.

11

Because we're a State educational system, our funds

12

come from general excise tax, a small proportion

13

and income tax.

14

which where most local school boards get their money

15

from property tax.

16

and you don't have any income, you're one of these

17

people that's moved here, that's retired, you're

18

going to pay a little bit in general excise tax, but

19

you're not funding our schools.

20

by the working class on the income taxes.

21

l

No property tax goes towards it --

So if you're a landowner here

It's being burdened

So you are right, Wayne, our fight is a

22

bigger fight than what we can do here.

23

made the commitment that if we have to pay it, we

24

will pay it.

25

into those schools.

So we have

Because I agree, money needs to be put
The issue we want to raise
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through this process is that we need to look at

2

something that becomes -- I agree, we have -- we

3

have issues in our capital improvements across the

4

State.
Another issue I bring up, the fact that they

5
6

hit Maui higher than they hit Oahu per unit.

7

mean, I'm not the most educated, but I thought this

8

was a State school system.

9

education -- why are we paying more, then, at that

I

That's what that equal

10

point?

Because it is a special tax that our buyers

11

now are going to pay more for their house than a guy

12

on Oahu did because they didn't have the same

13

assessment.

14

onto the State level, but that was what my comments

15

were meant, Wayne, and we will pay that 2 million.

16

And I will guarantee you this, if we have to pay

17

that and we have to pass that cost along to our home

18

buyers, whether it's in the affordable -- whatever

19

side it goes to, we will be good stewards of that

20

and we will make sure that that money goes to the

21

local schools.

22

it all goes to the school that it impacts.

23

will do whatever we have to to make sure that that

24

statement is correct, that it goes to Wailuku El,

25

lao, Baldwin.

So, again, I'm getting a little bit

Because I'm like you, I'm not sure
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, and I just want to tell you

2

what I learned in the years that different

3

developers have come up and -- and I'm gonna say

4

something that will at least give us a laugh now,

5

but, you know, they stated that it is a fact, and I

6

think it was DOE, when they gave us this assessment,

7

that the people in -- and I don't like to use this

8

word but I'll use it just because it's a fact, the

9

people that are in the lower incomes of levels here

10

in the State of Hawaii seem to promulgate more

11

babies.

12

money, maybe they're too busy working.

13

know maybe it's figuring out how they make a lot of

14

money, but they create less babies.

Funny, yeah?

Those that make a lot of
Oh, I don't

15

And so when I look at my personal life, I

16

guess I happen to be in the lower income because

17

I created six babies.

18

anyway, you guys didn't think it's funny, but

19

anyway, I'm just saying that, you know, that's

20

probably a fact.

21

Alice, we had that stat given to us.

22
23

MR. MARK SPENCER:
three.

That was a chuckle, but

Not probably.

It is.

Yeah,

That's bigger than me, Wayne.

I've got

I'm average, I guess.

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Are you through, Mr. Nishiki?

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yes, I'm done.

That was my
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chuckle.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Members, any more questions for the

3

developer?

If not, the Chair would like to adjourn

4

and reconvene at 1:30, where we'll take up the

5

various departments, you know, Q-and-A process.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Recess.
Yeah, but before we recess, I'd like to

8

close public testimony.

Are anyone out there that

9

want to make public testimony at this time?

If not,

10

Members, if there's no objection, I'll close public

11

testimony.

12

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

No objections.
Public testimony's closed.

We'll

14

reconvene -- we'll recess and reconvene at 1:30.

15

Thank you, Members.

16

RECESS:

17

RECONVENE:

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

19
20

(Gavel) .

11:45 a.m.
1 : 38 p. m •

(Gavel)

The Housing and Human

Services Committee meeting will come to order.
Okay, this morning we heard from the

21

developer as well as Q and A with the developer.

22

This afternoon we're going to be concentrating on

23

the various departments.

24

address questions to the Director of Housing and

25

Human Services, Director Lee.

At this time we can

So, Members, if you
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2

have any questions.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Member Nishiki.

Thank you.

Alice, and thank you

3

for being here early, because you've heard some of

4

the questions we asked the developer as we preface

5

this subdivision.

6

this Administration{ I don't know, maybe I'll ask

7

the question in this manner.

8

committing to 100 percent median income and below 51

9

percent of the house -- houses to be built.

Normally I guess maybe not for

You have the developer

Do

10

you -- are you recommending to this developer,

11

because we have nowhere in these documents here, any

12

breakdown?

13

working with Human Services, and he -- I wasn't

14

quick enough to write down 43, 32, 43, 20.

15

shouted out some numbers in different categories,

16

but do you have a recommendation that this

17

Administration wants to see in each category?

And the developer was talking about

18

MS. LEE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

He

Mr .
And then if you want to expound

20

more about the area of self help and lots only as an

21

area that we may want to look at.

22

MS. LEE:

Mr. Nishiki, I think you meant 120 percent of

23

median income is the ceiling.

24

haven't really insisted on a very specific breakdown

25

is because of the changing nature of interest rates

The reason why we
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lately, and it's so volatile that there's really no

2

sense in being really specific.

3

putting a ceiling, making sure they don't go over

4

the 120, but at the same time we -- we trust that

5

they will, provided that interest rates remain

6

reasonable, when the time comes that they will

7

provide a range of prices, and as they stated

8

earlier, starting with 225,000 and going up to

9

285,000, or 275.

10

So that's

That's why we're

that's what we are banking on.

11

The different price ranges, I think he talked about

12

also may have -- may have been relevant to the

13

market -- so-called market homes where they go all

14

the way up to 345 or 350,000.

15

breakdown that he

16

this morning.

17

intent, but that's not something that's required at

18

this point.

19

that he relayed to all of you

I don't

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I don't have that

I think this is their

Yeah, and the reason why I asked

20

for this is because I know in another prior

21

application we did break down, Mr. Chairman, the

22

units into each area of what we felt we wanted to

23

see, Alice.

24

keep their word.

25

good or bad I like to see them put in an area of the

And unlike you, I like to see people
Unlike you, I may not trust, and

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

108

HHS 7/6/04

1

kind of units in each category.

And this is just to

2

work I guess hand in hand with the developer and

3

this community and people in the different income

4

categories.
So I guess my question is if there is someone

5
6

that is willing to look at these categories -- and

7

you know what, we're not even asking them.

8

I kind of like.

9

that well.

I kind of like.

This guy

I don't know him

I don't go to church with him, nor do I

10

share a plate of meal with them, but I -- my heart

11

tells me that I can trust somebody that comes

12

forward and is not fighting us tooth and nail.

13

I don't know how much of a situation you've had to

14

ask on behalf of the people that we serve here in

15

Maui County, and ask him to break it down.

16

ask you this.

17

in each category, the amount of homes?
MS. LEE:

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

21

Let me

Have you asked him to break it down

18

20

And

I have asked them to be more specific.
Okay.

And he seemed to have done

his work in bringing
MS. LEE:

But I -- they're a little different from the

22

average developer in that I think the project that

23

you were referring to is the Kahana Ridge project

24

where pretty much the Council negotiated the various

25

categories, which was fine, but you allowed Kahana
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Ridge to go all the way up to 160 percent of median

2

income r so there's a wide range of prices.

3

case you have a developer who doesn't want to do

4

that.

5

affordable.

6

and only utilizing market prices if he has to.

7

In this

He doesn't want high market and low
He wants as many affordable as possible

So maybe you can ask him to come down and see

8

if that's -- if that information is correct or if

9

you would like to ask him -- perhaps so that you're

10

absolutely sure that there will be some very low

11

priced properties r that they are willing to provide

12

a certain amount of lots only.

13

I can see that you would be guaranteed the verYr

14

very low end.

15

that this project can move forward r we could

16

accomplish this in a housing agreement r which we

17

don't have at this pointr a housing agreement r and

18

we could bring it back for your review.

19

That's the only way

And we could accomplish this -- so

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah r that is what I think we're

20

kind of asking you if you

21

accommodate that{ because he seems to want to work

22

within these parameters r Alice.

23

know your but I know sometimes you're tough r and

24

today I'm asking your because r like you said r this

25

for me is exceptional r okay.

if you would

You know what r I

And like I said r I
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kind of like this guy.

I don't know if I'm going to

2

like him, but at least they're cooperating, and

3

that's half the battle won.

4

sincerity.

It shows a little

You know, even with the DOE he's going, we

5
6

will abide.

You know, and he's stepping outside and

7

going we will try to develop this park outside.

8

mean, you know how hard it is to pull teeth from

9

certain people, man?

I

You know, and I -- and that's

10

why I say, you know, it's like I hear a different

11

ring here and that's why I'm asking you if you would

12

work to develop this where we can see categories

13

addressed and thereby, you know, have it in there.

14

And then if he decides on his market home he wants

15

to do 125, 135, 145, hey, you know, let's put a

16

little purple ribbon on him too, because I think

17

this would be a standard that we can say to the

18

other developers -- and I'm sure that they're back

19

here, some of them -- looking at an exemplary

20

developer that's willing to do it.

21

going to put those labels on him yet until that

22

this is finished, but can you work, because he seems

23

like he wants to?

24

MS. LEE:

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

But I'm not

Yes.
And then finally, what about self
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1

help and lots only, is that a consideration that you

2

can have a discussion with him?

3

to understand.

4

help and maybe an irresponsible person that didn't

5

clean up their yard or whatever, but you know what,

6

most people that I see that have a possibility to

7

own their own homes, you know, they take care of

8

theirs, Mr. Chairman, because it's like it's mine.

9

I finally don't have to rent.

You know, he seems

He gave us a glaring example of self

I think that may be a

10

glaring example of someone that is not that way all

11

the time.

12

want to because the person that did the self help is

13

not cleaning up their front yard or something like

14

that, but I don't think that's true -- a true ring

15

for everyone, and the other has to be lots only.

16

mean, is that something that -- an area of our

17

populace that can also use that as a way to have

18

homeownership?

He painted a picture to me of why I don't

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I

Yes.
So anyway, Mr. Chairman, I would

21

trust that maybe Alice would want to go and pursue

22

that area, and, you know, I mean, it could be only

23

one or two, but one or two is one or two that I

24

think that most of us want to see in some way us

25

accommodate them, and the only reason why I push
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this so much is because if they're coming in saying

2

they're going to develop affordables and we're not

3

saying develop all low end

4

Council understands some of the shortcomings of it,

5

but I would hope that we can hold them to Alice

6

working with them and developing a formula for us to

7

see all incomes within that 120 located.

8

wants to do the others

9

that's a model for us, I think.

I

l

I think that this

If he

you know, then, you know,
So that would be

10

my -- my asking of you, Alice, to come back with us

11

and have something that you can work with with a

12

willing developer, anyway.

13

The other area that I had some concerns

14

about, Alice -- and can you first tell me what

15

department within this Administration is responsible

16

for the entire coordination?

17

question and then there seemed to be some

18

conflicting --

19

MS. LEE:

20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

21

MS. LEE:

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I think Dain asked a

Department of Housing --- concerns, yeah.

-- and Human Concerns, my department.
Not -- not that every department

23

may support the project, but they may -- may have

24

some concerns.

25

was in charge of the overall project, do you have an

So if you are the department that
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1

idea on what the exemptions add up to in County

2

in the total package, what the cost is to this

3

County?

4

MS. LEE:

Yes.

And I think the breakdown that Karlynn

5

gave you is fairly accurate.

It's very difficult to

6

put a number on how much is saved from not having to

7

go through the community plan amendment process and

8

the zoning change process.

9

whatever -- she gave you whatever is available right

But she -- from

10

now or whatever can be extracted at this point.

11

Remember that what's before you now is like

12

information that you would see for a change in

13

zoning application, information that is not

14

detailed, there are no construction drawings at this

15

point, most of it is conceptual drawings and

16

estimations at this point.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, but a developer is pretty

18

much depending upon what we have here as far as

19

exemptions, Alice.

20

decision making, I think we would be remiss if you

21

did not come up as the agency in charge of this

22

affordable housing project and not give us

23

approximately, as I look at exemptions, what that

24

total is.

25

developer himself, themselves, or herself would also

And for us, that as part of this

You have to have a ballpark figure.
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want it, because they don't want rules changed mid

2

stream into a project.

3

And that's the reason why I think in all fairness,

4

you know, even for us, we don't want to see 2

5

million and then maybe 4 million later or whatever

6

where now you've got to go and put sidewalks, curbs,

7

and gutters.

8

but you do not today I guess have any idea on what

9

that figure is and can you get it as the lead agency

10

11

I've talked to some of them.

And I've not gone to Public Works yet,

in this project for us?
MS. LEE:

I can tell you right now, Mr. Nishiki, that it

12

ranges between two and $3,000.

13

they're saving with these exemptions.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

15

MS. LEE:

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

17

That's is what

Per unit?

Per unit.
So it would be about 1.2 to 1.5

million?

18

MS. LEE:

Yes.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

And as we now say that the County

20

will absorb these exemptions, I ask this other

21

developer, and I ask of you now, how much of these

22

will come later in projects that we would have to

23

put in such as road widening, sidewalks, curbs and

24

gutters, land purchase, I don't know what else, that

25

we will see come before Riki Hokama's Committee as
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2
3

CIP projects or whatever, do you know?
MS. LEE:

No.

I think we need to ask the Public Works

Director.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I'm done.

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.

At this time

6

I'd like to calIon the developer, Mark Spencer, to

7

give us those numbers again as far as the number of

8

units that's going to be set aside for 90, 100, 110,

9

120 percent median income.

10

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Thank you, Joe.

Mark Spencer with

11

Spencer Homes.

12

about the ones that would fall under the 51 percent.

13

These were not -- we're not talking about the market

14

homes.

15

model, 32 homes; the C, 43; the D, 43; the E, 32;

16

and the F, 43.

17

time to address some of the comments that were just

18

made to -- on the exemptions?

19

clear up something.

20

Those numbers -- and we were talking

The A model we talked about, 21 homes; the B

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

If I

would this be an appropriate

I just wanted to

Before you do that -- before you do

21

that, can you have the pricing listing for all of

22

these different models that you just gave us?

23

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay, sorry about that.

I'll give you

24

the easy way.

25

10,000 each one, and that goes up to 275.

Start at 225 on the A and go up
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2

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mark.

Yeah, if you want to

address some of the questions that were asked.
MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay.

First of all, on the subject of

4

the self help, I may not have stated that clearly,

5

Wayne.

6

taking care of their places.

What I saw happen

7

there was they got them in

and, again, I applaud

8

them for getting them into a house, but a very bare

9

bones, basic house without landscaping, without a

I did not mean to say that they're not

10

retaining wall maybe that they've desperately

11

needed, without a fence, and what happens, what I've

12

seen, is that person gets into that house, it takes

13

everything they can to get into the house, there's

14

no money left to do those things.

15

up happening quite often is you have a neighborhood

16

that never gets a completed look, never gets front

17

yards put in, you know, a large percentage of the

18

houses.

19

And so what ends

And one of the things that we pride ourselves

20

in is giving a complete house, a complete

21

neighborhood.

22

in the basic package.

23

sodded those yards as well, so there's a very nice

24

neighborhood, a very quality neighborhood that

25

somebody can start with.

We landscape the front yards.

That's

Up to this point we have

So I want to make sure I
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didn't -- lIve got friends that live in the

2

self-help housing area and they take real good care

3

of their houses.

4

gets placed on someone when they move into a house r

5

if they have to now put in landscaping r buy all the

6

other thingsr put in a sidewalk to their front door r

7

it's tough.

8

been able to get into that house to come up with

9

that moneYr and that's what I meant on that part of

10

It's just that the burden that

It's tough on someone who's just barely

it.
On the exemptions r againr 11m going to use a

11
12

real common sense approach from the way we look at

13

these exemptions r and we call them exemptions.

14

think there's two sides of that coin.

15

you'll ask your Public Works Department r that Waiale

16

Road is basically -- in a way it's a Waikapu bypass r

17

and it's been in the County plans forr from my

18

understanding r at least ten years.

19

be costing us at the minimum $2.5 million to put in

20

a road that the County has wanted r has said they

21

needed.

22

that -- I take that $2.5 million gift to the County

23

and I take away these exemptions r and I still see

24

the County coming ahead.

25

I

I think if

That's going to

So I do real simple math and I take away

So as far as is it costing the County in the
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next two or three years that 1.2, 1.3, yeah, maybe,

2

but on the long term the County's getting a road

3

that they've known they've needed and they've wanted

4

that is well beyond those exemptions.

5

again, I think in the big picture, I think the

6

County -- I think this is a good deal for the

7

County.

8

they desperately needed to help take some of that

9

traffic away.

10

So -- and

I think the County is getting a road that

And as far as the lots only, we'll look into

11

that.

12

we will, you know, look to see if it's a

13

possibility, even if a couple of them, but I really

14

don't know how that will work price structure wise,

15

but -- because we haven't given it any thought yet.

16

We will look into that.

17

I'm not really sure how that would work, but

And then the only

I guess the last thing I

18

would respond to is on some of these categories.

19

Some of the other developments that have come before

20

you have obviously paid for those with high end

21

market, and as Alice stated, that's not our

22

objective.

23

in the affordable range.

24
25

Our objective is to get as many of these

Also, I would ask you to look at the 60
percent of the subdivision that was at your workshop
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last week where t you know what t on one hand I'm

2

going to tell you that helps to get a house that low

3

to get somebody in itt that's a good thing

4

we're not talking apples and apples.

5

talking

6

we're not talking about that.

7

You know t we're talking much larger homes.

8

believe at 80 percent on that proposal they were

9

still at a 750 square foot cottage.

- -

t

but

We're

that's a 750 square foot cottage and
We're talking homes.
And I

And I believe

10

at 90 I think it was only 850 square foot.

So I

11

just want to make sure we're -- you understand we're

12

talking the same thing.
And I did talk to dad during the break and we

13
14

are -- the question was asked before t

15

committed to this 225 t you know t that we're not

16

going to raise it?

17

to this price structure.

18

is -- against us that if the interest rates go

UPt

19

our top houses are going to have to come down

but

20

as far as to -- to specify them into different

21

percentage categories t we are -- that's something

22

that we still need to have

23

rates

24

commitment.

25

but I guess there is trust t and I believe that I can

t

Yes

t

we are.

are we

We are committed

The only deviation from it

t

with the interest

it is scarYt and we have given you our
And I wish I could explain it better t
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stand here and say what we've done over the past, we

2

have earned some of that, along with the commitments

3

we're making today.

4

anything?

5

MR. JESSE SPENCER:

6

MR. MARK SPENCER:

I see my dad -- did I misstate

Reducing prices.
No, no, okaYI let me make sure dad

7

heard this right, Jesse.

8

the 225, but we will stay at that

9

we will have houses offered for sale at 225.

10

MR. JESSE SPENCER:

11

MR. MARK SPENCER:

We will not be going below
we will have --

(Inaudible) .
Right.

Dad and I were talking and

12

what -- I think the thing to realize is as the

13

interest rates go up, the percentages of where that

14

225 house is changes to a different percentage

15

number of median income.

16

us.

17

for the most part will change is if the interest

18

rates go up so our higher ones have to be -- prices

19

have to be lower.

The 225 won't change for

Again, the only time these affordable prices

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mark.

21

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Thank you.

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay, Members, any more questions for

23
24
25

the Director?
VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Member Molina.
Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Director Lee, maybe this question have -- I guess
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1

maybe you and the Corporation Counsel can comment on

2

as well.

3

applicant had mentioned then that they wanted their

4

project to be I guess catering to people who live in

5

a certain area on this island.

6

here today has mentioned the project being given I

7

guess first preference to people who work in certain

8

occupations.

9

that because you have two government entities

Our last applicant for 201G process r the

Now r the applicant

Is there any concerns legally with

10

working on this and -- because I know that -- there

11

were concerns regarding the other applicant as tOr

12

you know r reserving a select segment or group of

13

people in our community for this whole affordable

14

housing project.

15

wanting to I guess designate or give first

16

preference to people who work in certain occupations

17

for this?

18

MS. LEE:

Any comments to the applicant here

I believe Mr. Spencer talked about targeting

19

certain occupations with the market homes.

20

the market homes r they have the discretion to

21

discriminate.

22

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

23

MS. LEE:

24

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay.

That's just for market homes?

Uh-huh.
OkaYr

So with

thank you.

Thank you.

Member Mateo.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you, Chairman.

Good afternoon, Ms. Lee.

2

Ms. Lee, in review

3

of this particular project, you looked at it so that

4

the County's affordable criteria was met.

5

MS. LEE:

Ye s .

6

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

You looked at it, I would assume at

7

this point, that part of your determination for your

8

recommendation had been based on comments you

9

receive from the departments as well.

10

MS. LEE:

No, we don't try to second guess the

11

departments.

12

put -- we help put the application together, but if

13

the other departments have comments to the contrary

14

regarding any technical issues, we include them as

15

part of the application.

16

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

We -- we organize the information.

Okay.

We

And because this is totally

17

conceptual at this point, can you tell me what you

18

looked -- what the department looked at in order to

19

come out with your current recommendation?

20

MS. LEE:

Primarily our department ensures that the

21

affordability criteria is met and that the

22

provisions of the 201G HRS are met.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay.

And this project meets all

that -- those criteria listings?
MS. LEE:

Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Okay, thank you.

Thank you,

Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Any more questions, Members?

4

Carroll?

Member Hokama?

5

Nishiki?

Member Kane?

6

you very much, Director Lee.

7

to calIon the Director of Planning, Mike Foley.

8

Okay, Members, any questions for the Director of

9

Planning?

10

Member Molina?

Member
Member

Thank you very much.

Thank

At this time I'd like

Member Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Thank you, Chairman.

My few

11

questions this afternoon for Mr. Foley would be how

12

much deviation can the Department support from the

13

current Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan?

14

that up, Mr. Foley, because I believe when we were

15

in discussions of Bill 84 and the County moving and

16

improving its community plan, general plan process,

17

we talked about some guiding principles, and of

18

course one of the subject for this community plan

19

area was to maintain green open space buffers

20

between existing residential neighborhoods to

21

maintain character.

22

And I bring

My understanding was that in no way would

23

Waikapu be threatened to become engulfed and

24

encompassed and be Wailuku.

25

heard some comments from you and your Department

And I think I even
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1

that that was being supported as one of our planning

2

goals and concepts.

3

housing changes so now regardless of our guiding

4

principles in the community plan we'll scrap that

5

for the sake of putting up affordable housing?

6

MR. FOLEY:

What changes

just affordable

Mr. Chairman, this is an extremely difficult

7

question.

The community plans, as the Council

8

members know, contain a number of different policies

9

and objectives, as does the County's general plan.

10

It's not unusual for projects to be strongly related

11

to some policies and not so related to others.

12

In -- Mr. Hokama's correct that one of the strong

13

policies in the general plan and in the community

14

plans is to have agricultural buffers between these

15

communities, and in this case specifically between

16

Wailuku and Waikapu, and I did mention that in my

17

comments this morning.

18

It is a concern of the Department, and I

19

think of the community, and this project will

20

partially fill that gap between Waikapu and Wailuku.

21

However r we -- we do feel that there is still an

22

area of agriculture between the Spencer project and

23

Wailuku, and we feel the bottom line is that the

24

various attributes brought by the Spencer project

25

outweigh the -- any negatives of the Spencer
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project.
All projects have impacts.

All projects have

3

concerns that need to be mitigated, whether that's

4

classrooms for an overcrowded school or whether it's

5

additional water storage or whether it's

6

additional -- a road that needs to be extended.

7

we have to come to a point where we feel that there

8

is a balance that is -- you know, the bottom line

9

being that the project is better for the community,

And

10

and in this particular case, yes, we have concerns

11

about the overcrowded schools and about the

12

separation of the communities by agriculture, but

13

when we go through the general plan update process

14

and we're looking at urban growth boundaries, we

15

feel that it will still be possible to maintain a

16

separation between Wailuku and Waikapu.

17

that on balance, if you compare all of the different

18

policies of the general plan, one of which obviously

19

is to promote affordable housing, that -- that if

20

you consider all of the policies of the general plan

21

and the community plan, that this particular project

22

comes out on the plus side.

23

advantages of this project than there are negative

24

impacts.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

And we feel

There are more

And I would say you would be
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absolutely correct, providing you come from that

2

right side of the point of view spectrum.

3

thank you for responding, because that was one of

4

the things bothered me, that I had always intended

5

and supported the current community plan to retain

6

those buffers.

7

Wailuku-Kahului just becoming one community, not two

8

separate distinct communities.

9

Chairman, I state that my concern on the record,

And I

We heard enough about

So, you know,

10

that it is hopefully not going to be one continuous

11

residential development abutting each other from

12

here to who knows where it's going to end.

13

I hope not.

14

new.

15

Maalaea?

Then we haven't done anything better or

The other area I want to bring up -- and

16

again, maybe later on we're going to meet at your

17

indulgence, Chairman, of Public Works, but,

18

Mr. Foley, you know, I went through this very thick

19

document that was asked to be prepared by Spencer

20

Homes, particularly the area of transportation.

21

I heard the transportation consultant provide some

22

earlier comments.

23

And

Again, I bring up -- and I don't know if it's

24

for you or Mr. Agaran as the overseers of Title 19,

25

but some of the things that was discussed to how to
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1

approach or relieve traffic conditions, again, I

2

bring up previously conditioned approvals, such as

3

given to Brewer Chemical on Waiko Road, the concern

4

of the Council that time of that Honoapiilani-Waiko

5

intersection, the bridge by the old cemetery and its

6

gross volume weight restrictions, the impact on

7

waiko Stream and what could possibly happen to

8

Kealia Pond with run-offs.

9

finding anything that brings into account things

I'm interested in not

10

that we have been -- have either made a decision on,

11

granted a condition, that I find may possibly impact

12

or maybe even amend or improve this application.

13

Any comments, please?

14

MR. FOLEY:

Mr. Chairman! I can only respond to part of

15

that.

The -- one of our concerns had to do with the

16

relationship of the project to Honoapiilani Highway.

17

Originally the project was designed with one or two

18

connections directly to Honoapiilani Highway! and I

19

believe those were eliminated because of

20

requirements for improvements by the State

21

Department of Transportation.

22

specifically what they were requiring! but my

23

understanding with this revised design is that most

24

of the access to the project would go down to Waiko

25

Road! and some of the traffic obviously will go to

I don't know
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the intersection on Honoapiilani Highway.
And my understanding from the presentation

2
3

this morning is that the developer has agreed with

4

the Waikapu community to participate in the funding

5

of that -- the traffic signal that will eventually

6

be required there at the intersection of Waiko Road

7

with the Honoapiilani Highway.

8

part of the mitigation, and another part is to

9

have what looks to be three different intersections

10

of this project with Waiale Road in order to spread

11

out the impact on Waiale Road so that it's not just

12

in one location.

So that -- that is

But the project did originally have -- have

13

14

several accesses to Honoapiilani Highway, and maybe

15

Phillip Rowell, the traffic engineer, can comment on

16

the advantages and disadvantages of connecting to

17

the highway versus the project as it is designed

18

now.

19

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I did have an opportunity,

20

Mr. Foley, to talk to representatives of the Spencer

21

project, and that's part of the reasons I bring up

22

my comments this afternoon, is that it was my

23

understanding when I supported the change of zoning

24

for Brewer Chemical that they were already made

25

aware, and I think they are committed and, again, I
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1

ask -- might not be your Department responds, might

2

be Mr. Agaran's, but we have placed on the

3

Administration a responsibility to ensure

4

conformance to conditions.

5

And I believe Brewer Chemical, to get that

6

industrial zoning, is still required to participate

7

in that improvements at Waiko-Honoapiilani.

8

that I am making argument for Spencer.

9

saying that we need to be fair that those that have

10

already agreed to by conditions or approval to make

11

those improvements -- and again I come back to us

12

not keeping the fire under these people's feet to

13

fulfill conditions of approval.

14

not have to have Mr. Spencer's project before us if

15

we went after everybody that still owes us

16

affordable housing units.

17

units available now if we keep holding our people or

18

those people feet to the fire that have agreed to

19

provide affordable units for real property or

20

improvements in zoning and land use situations.

21

And not

I'm just

You know r we might

There might be 2,000

And unfortunately -- or fortunately there's a

22

few of us with elephant memories that still can

23

recall that we are being owed improvements.

24

whether it was the old C. Brewer or Hawaii Farm,

25

whatever you want to call them, there was a lot of
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improvement subsurface on Waiale Driver there was

2

improvements by Iao r Saint Anthony School r it was

3

across lao Stream.

4

committed to the County.

5

taxpayer's burdenr Mr. Nishiki.

6

recall r things going to continue to slide by and

7

either another party's going to redo the commitment

8

or the taxpayer's going to eventually foot that

9

improvement.

10

These are things that were
That shouldn't be a
Unless we can

And againr what I'm leading up to is why that

11

then do we continually waive exemptions to not get

12

the appropriate zoning and community plan

13

designation r which this is being asked for.

14

support affordable projects.

15

that or keep current agricultural zoning?

16

hope the people know primary use of agricultural

17

land permits raising of livestock.

18

member sitting here todaYr you know how many calls

19

we get about chickens?

20

What are you going to tell this 410 people that live

21

in ag?

22

I can

We're going to waive
OkaYr I

You ask any

It's a permitted use in ago

OkaYr so whether there's restrictions of

23

covenants or not r you still go back to the basic

24

premise of what is the zoning of the land.

25

Restrictions can always be taken to court r CC&Rs.
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What is the underlying permitted premise of law?

2

You know, so I bring it up because I want everybody

3

to be clear what they getting into if they choose to

4

buy and what can be allowed and not allowed on those

5

properties.

6

complaints about chickens on ag land.

7

are the chickens supposed to be if not on

8

agricultural land?

Because it's interesting when I get
Well, where

So I ask you these questions, Mr. Foley,

9

10

because that is what is being asked of us, and I

11

thank Director Lee for being very clear, because on

12

one of our resolutions that we're being asked to

13

consider, besides the disapproval, is that if we

14

give our approval to this current resolution,

15

although it's preliminary and gives us

16

estimations -- and I don't know what Corporation

17

Counsel is going to say is substantial, the

18

definition of that word

19

ball of wax if the final plans and specifications do

20

not substantially deviate, but that's not our call,

21

Members.

22

substantial deviation.

23

comment, Chairman.

we approving this whole

We don't make that call of what is

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

MR. FOLEY:

So I would like some

Mr. Foley, comment.

I think the assumption is made, and I could be
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wrong, that when a project like this goes through

2

the 201G process for a piece of agricultural land, I

3

believe the assumption is made that there will be

4

eventually a change of the designation on the

5

community plan and on the zoning to Residential.

6

And I would

7

appropriate during our next community plan update

8

for this area that if this project is -- is approved

9

and if this project is built, then the property for

I would think that it would be

10

the Spencer development would be changed from

11

Agricultural to Residential.

12

During this interim period we might be very

13

hard pressed to enforce anyone

14

from agricultural practices on those 5,000 square

15

foot lots.

16

I'm not sure whether it's been a problem in the past

17

on -- in 201G projects, but I guess it's a potential

18

problem.

19

or prevent anyone

You know, that's an enforcement problem.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Mr. Foley, as far as your

20

understanding of the Gatri ruling by the courts,

21

does conformance -- the conformity issue apply to

22

all of these type of considerations or is it only

23

specifically for projects within an SMA zone?

24

maybe Mr. Kushi can help us with comment.

25

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Corporation Counsel.
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COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

The question of conformity, please,

Mr. Kushi.
MR. KUSHI:

Mr. Chairman, Mr. Hokama, if I understand your

4

question, the conformity is if this project was in

5

SMA, that the zoning must comply with the community

6

plan is the issue, is that what your question is?

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You know on this one, State land

8

classification is ag, zoning is ag, community plan

9

is ago

10

MR. KUSHI:

Correct.

11

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

They asking us for 410 units.

I

12

guess even under regular Residential R-l it would be

13

a non-conforming lot size.

14

MR. KUSHI:

Correct.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

So is there a concern -- I donlt

16

know, maybe if you tell me, no, right now theylre

17

all ag so therels no problem with conformity.

18

there a designation concern before this Committee

19

this afternoon in case someone brings it up it

20

should be Residential, Council, not Ag, it should be

21

Single-Family, not Ag, is that a conformity concern

22

by this body?

23

MR. KUSHI:

Is

Okay, Mr. Chair, Hokama, let me try to answer

24

it this way.

25

assuming.

The property is State Ag, lIm

Itls also County zoning Ag.
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that also.

It may be Interim, but community plan is

2

Ag.

3

specifically exempt from that chapter affordable

4

housing projects pursuant to 201E at that time,

5

which is now 201G.

6

ordinance an exemption to begin with.

In your Ag zoning ordinance, 19.330A, it does

So there is in your zoning

This property, as I understand it, is not in

7
8

the SMA zone, so you would not have to do an SMA

9

permit.

201G process also requires that, assuming

10

it passes this body, it has to go to the State Land

11

Use Commission to get a district boundary amendment,

12

which I'm assuming would be from State Ag to Urban.

13

So I think the process itself is consistent.

14

is that loophole that you point out that until the

15

process -- the district boundary amendment is --

16

well, I don't think it's a loophole, because they

17

need a district boundary amendment anyway.

18

don't think there will be chickens in the yard

19

situation, because they wouldn't build without the

20

State Land Use Commission giving that district

21

boundary amendment.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

There

So I

And that's what I wanted to hear.

23

That's exactly the understanding of how this project

24

needs to move forward.

25

compliance is not an issue.

So the question of
Compliance will be
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obtained.
MR. KUSHI:

Yeah! and also! Mr. -- Member Hokama, the 201G

3

process itself exempts the community plan amendment

4

process, so you basically waiving that -- that

5

conformity issue.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

I understand.

And like how we have

7

the power to grant conditional permits, special use

8

permits.

9

because we tend to be sued a lot for those things.

10
11

And again! I just bring it up, Chairman,

I'm done with planning.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

12

questions! Members?

13

Member Carroll?

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you.

Member Mateo?

Member Nishiki?
Thank you, Chair.

Any more
Member Molina?

Member Kane?
So question to

15

Mr. Foley based on his opening remarks this morning.

16

When are your written comments

17

comments going to be available to this body for

18

consideration before we make a final decision at

19

full Council?

20

MR. FOLEY:

your final

Mr. Chairman, I misspoke this morning.

I -- I

21

have before me the comments that we submitted on May

22

14th! and to my knowledge we don't have any

23

necessity to submit additional comments to the

24

Council.

25

in the May 14th memorandum! but I -- I have since

I didn't recall exactly what we had said
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reviewed it and we're satisfied that the -- that the

2

issues that we were concerned about have been raised

3

in today's meeting and are addressed in the various

4

documents that you have before you.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

7

opening

8

saying now

9

whole 180 degree turn what you just said now.

10

MR. FOLEY:

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

Mr. Kane.

So what you said this morning in the

in your opening comments and what you're
okay, I'm confused.

You just made a

I don't -- I don't interpret it that way.

11

The -- my purpose for making the comments that I

12

made this morning were I wanted those two issues to

13

be discussed by the Council, and they have been

14

today.

15

having an agricultural buffer between Waikapu and

16

Wailuku.

17

mentioned.

18

impact fee.

19

Statewide issue and the four Hawaii planning

20

directors are meeting to discuss some kind of an

21

interim policy that all four counties can work with

22

DOE to accomplish some equitable way of raising

23

money for DOE.

24

process we have now of raising money is not perfect

25

and needs to be improved, but it's going to require

Mr. Hokama has discussed the necessity of

That was one of the two concerns I
And the other one related to the DOE
That I agree with Mark Spencer is a

And I agree with him that the
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State legislation and it's a Statewide problem, not

2

just a Maui problem.

3

saying what I did this morning was to inspire

4

discussion among the Council members on those two

5

issues and that happened.

6

the Planning Department and the remaining other

7

departments of the Administration do support this

8

project.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Okay.

But my -- my purpose for

The bottom line is that

So your comments this morning

10

that were basically saying that the Planning

11

Department is still working on comments to be

12

submitted to the Council

13

MR. FOLEY:

That was an error.

14

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

15

MR. FOLEY:

16

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Yeah.

That's an error?
It's my first mistake.
Okay.

And your May 14th

17

communication that's a part of the package is the

18

complete comments that you're Planning Department

19

has?

20

MR. FOLEY:

Yes, we -- we have made other comments to the

21

developer and a number of design changes have been

22

made at our request.

23

from us, you know, over the period of the last year,

24

but I don't see any need for us to make additional

25

written comments to the Council, unless there's some

They have other communications
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requested.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

4

5

Thank you.

Thank you, Chair.

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

Any more

questions for the Planning Director?
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah.

Mr. Nishiki.

Ilm going to read from the

6

Charter of the County of Maui, and under Department

7

of Planning, under 8-8.2, Planning Director, the

8

Planning Director shall be appointed and may be

9

removed by the Mayor.

The Planning Director shall

10

have had five years of experience in the field of

11

planning, three of which shall have been in an

12

administrative capacity.

13

powers, duties, and functions, says the Planning

14

Director shall be the administrative head of the

15

planning -- Department of Planning, serve as the

16

chief planning office of the County, and as a

17

technical advisor to the Mayor, Council, Planning

18

Commissions on all planning and related matters.

19

And in it, under the

My question -- and then it goes to give you

20

eight different responsibilities that you have.

21

When looking at this affordable housing

22

development

and of course in the resolution it

23

talks about

that the final plan specifications

24

for the Waikapu Affordable Housing Subdivision shall

25

be deemed approved by the Council if the final plans
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and specifications do not substantially deviate as

2

determined by the Director of Housing and Human

3

Concerns from the preliminary plans and

4

specifications submitted to the Council.
This gives Alice a lot of power, but the

5
6

overall planning of Maui County, from what the

7

Charter reads, lies specifically with you.

8

heard today area of concerns when it comes to

9

planning, and talking about the gamut from our

You've

10

highways, which we will have police here, to our

11

schools, to conformance, as Riki said, to the

12

community plan, and what your responsibility is as

13

chief of planning.

14

review this project, that the Planning Department

15

deems whatever is being recommended to address all

16

concerns of good planning and also address the

17

community plan all in conformance?

18

MR. FOLEY:

Are you saying that when we now

Mr. Chairman, as I just stated previously, the

19

general plan and the community plans contain broad

20

general policies and objectives, and some of the

21

policies and objectives are in conflict and it's

22

necessary for the Staff and the Council to sometimes

23

choose between them.

24

particular case, one of the policies is to protect

25

ag land and another is to provide affordable

An example would be, in this
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housing.

Those two policies are mutually -- they're

2

in conflict on anyone piece of property, and in

3

this case it is -- it is our recommendation and a

4

decision of yours as to whether or not this is an

5

appropriate place for affordable housing or an

6

appropriate place for agriculture.
In addition to that decision being made by

7
8

the Council, as Mr. Hokama has said, this property

9

also has to go through the State Land Use Commission

10

for a change in designation from Agricultural to

11

urban.

12

Department is to collect comments in detail from

13

various different agencies and to assimilate those

14

and submit them to the Council along with specific

15

expertise in drainage and highways and housing and a

16

number of other categories.

17

issues that would otherwise fall through the cracks,

18

like housing -- I'm sorry, like schools, and it's

19

our responsibility to address all of the issues,

20

taking advantage of the specific expertise that we

21

have in other departments.

22

But our responsibility in the Planning

There are a lot of

But on -- on balance, after we review all of

23

those comments and after we review all of those

24

issues and the policies, we make a recommendation to

25

the Council.

On affordable housing projects, that
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1

responsibility is shifted to Alice Lee to assimilate

2

the comments and to make a recommendation, but we

3

still make comments because some of the issues, like

4

schools, as an example, would otherwise not be

5

commented on by Public Works or Fire or Police or

6

Housing.

7

particular project it -- it is an appropriate

8

location for an affordable housing project.

9

will be more difficult but not impossible to still

And it is our -- our opinion that for this

And it

10

satisfy the goal of keeping Wailuku and Waikapu

11

separate by an agricultural buffer.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

So as you said, as Chief of

13

Planning, Chief Planning Officer, you're in charge

14

in gathering information from all the different

15

agencies and then disseminating it.

16

on -- and I'm just going to make -- use as an

17

example the DOE that specifically has its

18

requirements and will then pass on to you as the

19

Chief Planning Officer for this community of Maui

20

County what the impact is going to be.

21

now I'm going to tell you what they wrote,

22

Mr. Foley, and in their letter to Munekiyo, which

23

I'm sure you have.

24
25

So we call

Okay.

So

I don't want to start blaming different
agencies, okay, because you're the Chief Planning
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Officer now, okay.

So I'm just going to ask you

2

this because Alice may be in charge of this project,

3

but you're the Chief Planning Officer that looks at

4

the project.

5

going to read again that I read earlier today, that

6

by the year 2007 with this project -- and I don't

7

know if they got other projects included -- lao

8

Intermediate will be 39 percent over capacity,

9

Baldwin High will be 28 percent over capacity, and

So in the April 29th communication I'm

10

lao is going to be 48 percent over capacity.

11

These are double digit numbers veering on -- I don't

12

know.

13

You're the expert in planning.

Okay.

You know,

14

when we look at these kinds of deficits, and you say

15

you support it, is there any thermometer where you

16

say absolutely not because our kids are going to be

17

affected and I know that once it hits this, then our

18

poor school teachers, despite that we may be

19

providing housing for them so they can live here,

20

are still going to be faced with a calamity of

21

double digit capacity levels?

22

You know, I don't know how many -- I don't

23

eat sardines, but I don't know how many sardines

24

there are in a can these days, but there's got to be

25

a point where if you put too many sardines in there,
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1

you know, the canis going to pop and it's just going

2

to be too much, or as we've learned, some of us have

3

learned in science class or whatever, when you start

4

putting rats together -- and I don't mean to call

5

human beings rats, but all I got to do is just go to

6

Honolulu and look at how the quality of life is

7

there -- in fact I was just there with Michael and

8

some of my fellow Councilors, and see how people are

9

when they start congregating and start rubbing

10

shoulders -- and they're not rats.

They don't bite

11

at each other yet, but they surely have a behavior

12

problem, and that affects our quality of life.

13

I'm talking about this specifically in a classroom,

14

Michael.

And

15

So as Chief Planning Officer, when you see

16

double digit number and something like this being

17

done, what is your take on this as this Council

18

looks at you for some sort of advice in planning?

19

I'm done.

20

MR. FOLEY:

Mr. Chairman, in response to Mr. Nishiki,

21

the -- the overcrowding of the schools was mentioned

22

in my opening remarks and has been a constant

23

concern not only with respect to this project but a

24

lot of other projects throughout the County, and

25

Mr. Spencer will undoubtedly remember that we have
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consistently suggested that they pay the DOE impact

2

fee.

3

DOE's current method of calculating and collecting

4

this money nor their method of spending the money is

5

perfect, but right now it's the only way we have of

6

collecting money.

7

system, I think we have an obligation to do

8

everything we can to collect money for DOE and see

9

to it that it's spent in the schools where it's most

10
11

I have said repeatedly that I don't think the

And until we have a better

needed.
The other County planning directors and I

12

have been talking about the necessity for State

13

legislation so that the DOE fee would be collected

14

by each County with each building permit for each

15

new housing unit regardless of whether it's in a

16

large development or it's an individual house on an

17

individual lot.

18

would be spread out over a much larger number of

19

units and it would be more equitable.

20

be related to projects of 50 units or more, because,

21

as I have said numerous times, a project with 49

22

houses has basically the same impact as a project

23

with 51 houses, and we do see subdivisions that are

24

cut to 49 units to avoid this fee.

25

a Statewide problem, and until it's solved, which

That way the education impact fee

It shouldn't

So it really is
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1

could take some timet we feel that the DOE charges

2

that are allocated by DOE are -- should be -- should

3

be paid.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NlSHlKl:

Okay.

Excuse met yeah t the -- it

5

says Wailuku El would be close to capacitYt lao

6

would be 48 percent over capacitYt and Baldwin 28

7

percent over capacitYt my reading of the numbers.
FinallYt knowing where these schools are t

8
9

Michael t knowing where the project iS t knowing how

10

cars will travel t give me an idea of the impacts on

11

the road not only from the school but from just

12

people in there and the way that the road systems

13

will be impacted.

14

Waiko's going to be completed t but this is one road

15

that this subdivision plans to use.

16

MR. FOLEY:

And I don't know, Rikit when

The answer to your question is fairly

17

complicated and could probably be answered better by

18

Phil Rowell t the traffic engineer t but basically

19

there are going to be car impacts in several

20

different directions.

21

north on Waiko Road to Honoapiilani Highway and turn

22

right to go to Wailuku El -- ElementarYt and that

23

light

24

traffic signal t I suspect t in the near future.

25

There will be also cars that go down Waiko Road

There will be cars that go

that intersection will be -- will receive a
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south and there will be cars that use the new Waiale

2

Road.
The primary impact I think is likely to be

3
4

towards the elementary school.

And how much of an

5

impact it will be partially relies on whether or not

6

there will be any -- any -- any bus system, any

7

alternative way for people to get their kids to that

8

school.

9

Lani.

There will be another school built at Maui
That school has been -- the site has been

10

chosen.

11

allocated and the school should be under

12

construction I believe by next year.

13

that will be used by DOE as a reliever for Wailuku

14

Elementary or lao Intermediate, I don't know, but

15

DOE is familiar with the developments that are

16

occurring in this area and the Department of

17

Transportation is aware of the increased traffic on

18

Honoapiilani Highway.

19

The site's been provided.

The money's been

Whether or not

I drive through this particular section twice

20

a day and I'm pretty familiar with the way it is

21

now, and I see construction of housing projects on

22

both -- both sides -- both sides of it, the north

23

and south side.

24

familiar and concerned, but I think that traffic

25

signal at Waiko and Honoapiilani Highways is likely

So I am personally, you know,
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2

to happen within the next couple of years.
The Council should also keep in mind the

3

statement made by Mark Spencer earlier that this

4

project will be built probably in four phases of 100

5

houses each r and that will give both the school and

6

the Department of Transportation an opportunity to

7

mitigate the impact on classrooms and on the traffic

8

at that intersection.

9

responsive in both State agencies and mitigate those

10
11

So hopefully they'll be

impacts before they become severe.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, and I think that when Riki

12

Hokama -- and we'll do our due diligence also

13

mentioned, Mike, and you were not here at that time,

14

about when this specific land company came in for

15

zoning -- and this wasn't one of it.

16

did get zoning.

17

improved many of the roads, including Waiale, and I

18

would hope you would look at some of the conditions

19

placed on some of the zoning, because I heard the

20

developer said that they're working with I think

21

that land company to look at the parkr but under one

22

of your responsibilities it says review the list of

23

proposed capital improvement projects contemplated

24

by the County and recommend the order of their

25

priority to the Mayor.

However, they

They were supposedly to have
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1

2

infrastructure, roads and traffic signalization

3

completed, I would hope somewhere in your

4

recommendations that you would make sure that these

5

are being done.

6

traffic signal there, I can -- I don't want to be

7

the fortune teller in saying that there's going to

8

be perhaps a loss of life.

9

and if we're going to see that there's going to be

10

more urbanization in this area, I don't think that

11

any road, Mr. Chairman, is going to solve what we

12

now experience and the impacts that 400-house

13

subdivision will create, Mike, and we can expect

14

more traffic gridlock, I would think, in this area.

15

Because unless Waiale is done and a

The other has to be

Finally, I don't know if it's you as Chief

16

Planning Officer or Alice, but I would hope that

17

when I heard you mention four phases, I would hope

18

to see that just as we see, Alice or Mike, one

19

home -- and this could be maybe a Council

20

recommendation.

21

mentioned this, just as we see one affordable

22

unit

23

that we will see similarly one affordable unit come

24

up so that, you know, we will truly see some

25

affordables just as a market unit comes up, so the

I think Riki -- someone else maybe

or one market unit come up, I would hope
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county would impress upon the developer should this

2

affordable housing be approved, that that would be

3

something that we would see, Mr. Chairman.

4

you.

5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

Thank you, Chair.

Thank

Mr. Kane?

Question to

7

Mr. Foley, Chair.

I want to go back to your May

8

14th response letter to Ms. Lee, and that is in the

9

Section 5, Appendix F, Members.

I guess my

10

confusion, Mr. Foley, is your earlier -- this

11

morning you made your opening comments.

12

in your afternoon comments you had -- you know, you

13

state that you made error in your comments.

14

curious that in your May 14th letter you're

15

responding to Ms. Lee in the very first paragraph

16

that starts off with the roadway access, talking

17

about it being aligned with Pilikana Street, and

18

then the response from Ms. Kawahara is letting you

19

know that no, that's changed, that it's not going to

20

be there.

21

Road, and then they're talking about the traffic

22

light and the traffic signal being at Waiko and

23

Honoapiilani Highway.

24
25

You've

So I'm

Instead they're talking about the Waiale

So are you telling us now that your oral
comments are sufficient for the change?
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1

seems like this change was made after you provided

2

your comments on May 14th to Ms. Lee, and 11m just

3

curious, because by you not giving us any written

4

comments, we have no idea on how you feel about

5

whatls projected in the traffic report that shows

6

peak traffic projections on East Waiko Road having a

7

left-hand turn of approximately 153 vehicles in the

8

p.m., so approximately -- so a lot of those cars

9

coming off of Waiale, coming out of the project,

10

turning up west on East Waiko Road going to the

11

stoplight and then turning left to go south and

12

eventually either south or west.

13

over 150 units or vehicles.

14

understand your concerns, or if you have concerns

15

about going from I believe it was 20 something cars

16

up to 150 something cars going through East Waiko

17

Road with this project?

18

MR. FOLEY:

Itls going to be

Can you help us

Mr. Kane, our concerns were with the

19

highway -- Honoapiilani Highway with respect to this

20

project, and we felt that having the traffic signal

21

at the intersection of Waiko Road and the highway

22

would mitigate that concern, that impact on the

23

Honoapiilani Highway.

24

another access to the highway, and that would have

25

split the traffic, although most of it would have

Previously there was to be
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probably used the access from the subdivision

2

instead of Waiko Road.

3

idea to have a signal at Waiko Road and then have

4

another one in this subdivision only a few hundred

5

yards to the east.

6

signal on -- at Waiko and Honoapiilani Highway would

7

be adequate -- adequate mitigation for Honoapiilani

8

Highway.

9

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

But it would not be a great

So we felt that having the

So during peak time -- peak a.m. --

10

peak hour traffic projections, having -- just during

11

that peak hour 153 cars on East Waiko Road, which is

12

right to that residential areat across that little

13

bridget past the park and the cemeterYt that's

14

acceptable t I mean in your view t having that many

15

vehicles piled up at a stoplight at Waiko Road?

16

MR. FOLEY:

It was analyzed in the traffic import --

17

traffic impact analysis by Phillip Rowell t and I

18

believe the level of service that was -- that was

19

calculated after the project and after other

20

projects is a level of service C, and I'm looking at

21

Phillipt see if he agrees t and he agrees that it is

22

a level of service C.

23

acceptable level of service and indeed is far better

24

level of service than we have at many of our

25

intersections.

That is considered to be an

It's on page 27 of the traffic
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impact report.

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

3

MR. FOLEY:

4

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

5

MR. FOLEY:

Yeah, under table 9?

Yeah.
Thank you.

Yeah/ in fact all of the cumulative analysis

6

shows that at all intersections, there would be a

7

level of service of A, B, or C, and that's very

8

unusual, if you compare it to other projects.

9

nice to see A, B, and C.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12
13

questions?

Okay.

It's

Thank you.

Thank you, Mr. Kane.

Members, any more

Member Hokama.

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Chairman, thank you.

Just since

14

Mr. Nishiki and Mr. Kane brought up their points,

15

to Mr. Foley, I know this is a specific request, and

16

so of course the report is geared to this specific

17

project from the -- their consultant's point of

18

view.

19

happening also to put stress on this Honoapiilani

20

Highway mauka of the road, whether it be the current

21

expansion of the Waiolani area or the Nunokawa

22

subdivision, whether there's increased things

23

happening by Kuikahi, north side of that area.

24

of these other projects are adding additional stress

25

to Honoapiilani Highway.

However, we are aware that there's things
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And I know what the consultant did on his

1

2

traffic study, but I sit at Waiko Road in the

3

mornings and afternoons.

4

to get onto Honoapiilani Highway from my family's

5

other residence.

6

are on those side streets between Waiko and Tropical

7

Plantation that trying to get out on that road

8

during peak times.

9

at the accumulated additional impacts that all of

I see at Wilikona trying

I know about all the retirees that

Does your Department take a look

10

these other projects, if on line, will continue to

11

burden this road system, besides just a specific

12

project before us this afternoon, sir?

13

MR. FOLEY:

Yes, we do.

14

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Taking into account the

15

consultant's traffic impact analysis and knowing

16

what you know with what's happening with other

17

property owners or developers, are you satisfied

18

that the concern level is sufficient for us as it is

19

being addressed this afternoon or is there something

20

that we need to try and mitigate because of

21

information you are aware of?

22

conditional zoning, this may be our only opportunity

23

to ensure we do the right thing.

24
25

MR. FOLEY:

Because unlike

I think that, as we have said, the

intersection of Waiko Road and Honoapiilani Highway
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1

is going to need a light sometime during this

2

project construction.

3

lightt you know t will be determined by Department of

4

Transportation t and my understanding is that the

5

developers of this project will contribute towards

6

that signal.

When exactly it needs a

The traffic will definitely be impacted by

7

8

this project on Waiko Road and on Honoapiilani

9

Highway and on the waiale Road t and the other -- the

10

other projects that you're referring to will also

11

impact those -- those projects, especially

12

Honoapiilani Highway and Waiale Road.

13

want

14

that traffic's going to be the same or better.

15

know t it is going to be worse, but it -- it is a

16

system that is designed to accommodate additional

17

traffic.

18

Wailuku -- from this project into Wailuku is a very

19

important connection for not only this project but

20

for other projects t and that

21

know t increasingly important as those other projects

22

are built.

23

SOt

tOt

So I don't

you know t leave you with the impression
You

And the Waiale Road extension into

that will be, you

yeah, the project that -- the project

24

will contribute to traffic and the traffic in this

25

general area will become more congested t but that's
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part of the price you pay for urbanization.

2

roads are designed to accommodate it, but it's --

3

it's not -- we'll all be driving a little slower,

4

which is more safely.

5

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

And the

Thank you, Mr. Foley.

Thank you, Mr. Hokama.

Any more

7

questions, Members?

8

this time the Chair would like to call a recess.

9

We'll report back at 3:10.

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

11

next?

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Director Foley.

Joe, who you going to bring up

The next Department up would be

13

Director of Public Works and Environmental

14

Management, so recess up to 3:10.

15

RECESS:

16

RECONVENE:

17

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

At

(Gavel) .

3:03 p.m.
3:12 p.m.

(Gavel).

Housing and Human Services

18

will reconvene.

19

the Police Department, Officer Lisa Rodrigues.

20

Members, any questions for the Police Department and

21

Ms. Rodrigues?

22

MS. RODRIGUES:

At this time I'd like to call up

And I apologize -- sorry.

I apologize for

23

not formally introducing myself the last time as far

24

as identifying my position in the department.

25

one of the Wailuku community police officers and,
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you know, I'm not a patrol officer.

2

veteran of the Honolulu Police Department as well as

3

the Maui Police Department.

4
5

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Officer Rodrigues.

Members, any questions for Officer Rodrigues?

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

7

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

8

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

9

I'm a 14-year

Question.

Member Hokama.
For Officer Rodrigues, and thank

you for your earlier comments.

It's good to know

10

that we can lure Oahu police officers to Maui, so

11

thank you.

12

patient and you've been listening to some of the

13

discussion this afternoon.

14

you would add to the road system like Honoapiilani

15

Highway not because of what just this one project's

16

going to do, but, you know, you heard me question

17

the Planning Director, there's a lot of other things

18

adjacent or abutting this project that's going to be

19

coming up soon or simultaneously.

20

a cumulative impact you can share with us that may

21

help us make a better decision, Officer?

22

MS. RODRIGUES:

Is -- you know, I know you've been

Yes.

Is there anything else

So anything from

And take into consideration I was

23

listening to everything and taking my notes.

24

as our standpoint goes, we are on an unbiased level.

25

All we're doing is stating the facts, and I'm

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

As far

HHS 7/6/04

157

1

telling you from my experience dealing with traffic

2

both over here and Oahu.

3

plan, the first thing I thought to myself is why

4

isn't there a connection between I believe it's

5

Pilikana Street and the new project?

6

all of this traffic and putting it through little

7

bitty Waiko Road that is surviving on its own right

8

now as it is, but any more development and it will

9

need -- however, there's not going to -- and from

When I first look at this

You're taking

10

what I understand, there's not going to be any more

11

development on the Old Waikapu side.

12

to be on the new side, Waiolani and all that area.

It's all going

13

So to make it right the first time and to

14

make sense, instead of bringing all that traffic

15

into Old Waikapu, put the traffic light at Pilikana

16

and H -- can I get up and show you guys what I'm

17

talking about?

18
19

20

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You need to speak in the mike,

though, Officer, yeah, okay, thank you.
MS. RODRIGUES:

Okay.

Taking into consideration if you

21

put into a traffic light at Pilikana to connect

22

those two, you're benefitting both west side and the

23

east side, okay, the new side -- sorry.

24

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

I'll hold it for you.

25

MS. RODRIGUES:

You're benefitting -- you're

Okay.
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benefitting both this Waiolani side as well as the

2

new side, and you're not bringing all the traffic

3

into the Old Waikapu area.

4

know when the last time anybody went over there, but

5

it's literally feet in front of their houses.

6

150 cars not only brings up congestion, it brings up

7

pollution, noise, and everything else.

8

those -- and I probably am speaking on behalf of

9

those residents without actually being their

And if you -- I don't

So

And I'm sure

10

advocate, but if I lived in that area, that's what I

11

would be concerned about.

12

So you're bringing all this traffic, and then

13

if -- if -- and this is what I see.

If you do bring

14

a traffic light over here at Waiko Road, okay,

15

instead of over here, all these houses -- all these

16

residents over here, to avoid making that left turn

17

onto Honoapiilani to get into Wailuku, they're going

18

to make a right turn, go down Waiko Road so you're

19

adding even more.

20

you're adding even more because they're going to

21

come down Waiko Road just to go onto Waiale to head

22

it into Wailuku to avoid making that left turn.

23

It's the same as, for example, Papa Avenue at

24

Puunene.

25

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

You know, if you think about it,

Thank you, yeah.
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MS. RODRIGUES:

Okay, people don't make that left turn.

2

They go through the small little side streets to get

3

away from that.

4

couple of my other comments was the level of police

5

service -- thank you, I'm done with that one.

6

level of police service will also change in all

7

these housing -- with these new housing coming up.

8

You know, we're kind of spread thin as it is

9

already.

So that's what I'm seeing.

And let me see, what was -- sorry.

10

to read my chicken scratch over here.

11

that was about it.

12

A

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

The

Trying

Oh, okay, and

Sorry.

No, no.

One, I was interested that

13

at least somehow you or the Department's been

14

informed of what can and cannot expand in that area

15

regarding housing.

16

have had that knowledge.

17

Waiale was to continue and eventually come out by

18

Tropical Plantation or somewhere, is one plan I've

19

seen, to further relieve Waiko, stress on Waiko, and

20

again, how to reroute traffic that doesn't want to

21

go through Wailuku per se.

I thought this Committee would
And second, of course

So I appreciate your comments that you

22
23

shared.

I for one am not an advocate of signals.

24

think signals stop traffic flow, doesn't assist

25

traffic flow, in my opinion.

And for whatever
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1

reason, that's my experiences.

2

concern or issue.

3

MS. RODRIGUES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Maybe it's a timing

That's out of my control as well.
But I know that's not your control,

Is there ways -- you know, because from

5

Officer.

6

one point I can see you stating your concern that

7

it's not maybe for the resident of the Old Waikapu

8

area, but as a crook trying to escape, you know what

9

route he can

gOt

and he only got one or two routes.

10

So for you to stop that crook trying to leave the

11

subdivision, unless he's going to drive in that

12

pond.

13

MS. RODRIGUES:

Well, our radios are the fastest way.
In other words t we

14

It's faster than a vehicle.

15

can -- you know t there's ways we can do things t but

16

on a safety issue, you know, the fastest way out of

17

there not only for the crooks but if a situation

18

comes up where the residents need to evacuate t

19

that's another -- that's another issue too.

You

20

know, this is -- crooks t we can catch them.

It's

21

residents evacuating the area in a timely manner.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Wellt I just share with you -- I

23

know that Fire has their preferred street patterns,

24

water has their own patterns they desire

25

obviously your own patterns that you want within the
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1

subdivision.

Any concerns about that pond, that

2

existing big pond?

3

MS. RODRIGUES:

4

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

5

A lot, yes.

Is there something you can share

with us that you're comfortable with this afternoon?

6

MS. RODRIGUES:

7

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

8

MS. RODRIGUES:

9

And kids --

As a mother -As an enforcement officer.

As an enforcement officer and a mother and

knowing kids the way -- and once being a kid myself,

10

I'm gonna like swim inside that pond, you know,

11

plain and simple.

12

the fence or whatever, and you have to look at that.

13

Unless it's secure in a manner where we can be rest

14

assured

15

used to go swimming in the punawai, but there was no

16

such thing as sue jobs before then too, you know,

17

right now it's different, and yes, it is a concern.

18

If it is properly secured both on top as well as

19

trying to get in on the sides, then, you know,

20

inevitably it's going -- somebody's going to cut it

21

or whatever, but as long as we do our best to secure

22

it.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

24

Rodrigues.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

I going jump

you know, small kid time, of course we

23

25

If there's a fence,

Okay.

Thank you, Officer

Okay, Members, any more questions?
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1

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

2

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

3

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Chairman.

Mr. Mateo.
Thank you, Chairman.

Maybe not for

4

the Officer, however, at a later point, because of

5

the issues that she has clearly, you know, like

6

shared with us, is it possible to also bring the

7

developer down so they can at this particular point

8

respond to some of her concerns and see whether or

9

not something is workable where they can address her

10

concerns at this particular point or take it back so

11

that at a later time we've got some kind of resolve

12

to the issues that she has brought up?

13

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay, I'll allow that.

14

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Hello again.

Mr. Spencer.

Mark Spencer.

I guess

15

the first thing I'll clear up is where she talked

16

about all the traffic going up to Waiko.

17

actually believe that's going to be the case.

18

Obviously the traffic corning out of subdivision is

19

going to go in numerous directions.

20

report will show that.

You know, some of it will be

21

going to Wailuku Town.

We actually believe that

22

with the Waiale Road constructed r majority of the

23

people are going to head down -- down Waiko, which

24

is in the process of getting in the next week to two

25

weeks to start with the -- the repair work.

I don't

The traffic
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I personally have driven and clocked it, and

1

2

from the intersection of Waiale and Waiko, going

3

down the lower way, if you're going to go to Kihei

4

or Lahaina, it was .3 tenths of a mile longer than

5

going up, but it was a little bit faster because you

6

weren't dealing with the top of Honoapiilani and you

7

were getting on the lower highway.

8

of the points is -- and even though -- some people

9

will go up, but it's not going to be all the total

10

So, again, one

amount of cars that she referred to.
We did -- we looked at Waiko different at

11
12

first.

13

Association three times, and one of the concerns we

14

had was for those residents there.

15

developed a plan making that one waYr even trying to

16

limit it to residents r and the overwhelming response

17

we got with Waiko Road residents in attendance was,

18

nOr we need our Waiko.

19

thoroughfare open as the path -- the preferred path

20

going into Waikapu.

21

that plan.

22

agencies and were kind of moving forward with it.

23

We thought we would be looked upon real well by

24

Waikapu, and we had to take a step back.

25

We met with the Waikapu Community

And we actually

We want to keep that

And we had already come up with

We had been talking with different

And that's when we kind of took a step back,
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1

we went/ we said/ well/ you know what/ maybe that is

2

always going to be the thoroughfare through Waikapu/

3

and that1s when we approached the State.

4

although on one hand we thought it wasnlt fair that

5

we should have to participate in a light that the

6

State has known they1ve needed for a long time, we

7

realized, okay, if that1s a path that1s going to be

8

open and some of our residents will be going through

9

there, we will share the cost.

10
11

And

And so that1s how we

went -- we got to that point in there.
I guess the only other comment I would have

12

is as far as the pond is the fencing will be there.

13

I got to say this very politely.

14

by an ocean.

15

know, I have seen on Oahu, you know, the one boy

16

who -- but I also know we live with water all around

17

us, and I think we will be doing the precautions

18

with fencing, with signage, with an active community

19

association that will help prevent that.

We1re surrounded

You know/ and I know I read -- you

20

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mark.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

I guess just to follow up again on

22

that particular item that you just spoke about.

23

Adjacent to the reservoir is part of the park area.

24

So you1re encouraging, you know, the use of this

25

facility and the pond is still right there.
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1

unless that fencing, you know; whatever apparatus

2

you're gonna put up is so secure, you know, that

3

you've got a big play area accessible to the water

4

that, you know, it could be, you know, encouraging

5

the use of it.

6

MR. MARK SPENCER:

We will work with the Parks Department,

7

Public Works, Police, you know, whoever wants to get

8

involved in that.

9

conceptual at this point.

One of the -- and this is
One of the conceptual

10

ideas we've had is to have the fence down close to

11

the pond and have the walkway and everything else

12

raised up above so as you're looking out, you're not

13

looking through the fence, number one.

14

the things we can incorporate in there is actually

15

putting a very thorny ground cover that goes from

16

the walkway path down to the pond.

17

Maybe one of

We were -- we've been successful with that.

18

When we did Piilani Village we put up a white vinyl

19

fence and we had noticed by the Meadowlands where

20

they had done the same thing they had a lot of

21

graffiti on it, so we planted a very thorny, nice

22

looking ground cover and we haven't -- I hope I'm

23

not advertising for the community of vandals, but we

24

haven't had a problem because it's -- it's no fun to

25

go through that ground cover.

So, you know, we can
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1

look at things with that with the different

2

agencies.

3
4

5
6

7

COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:

Thank you very much.

Chairman r

thank you very much for allowing it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Member Mateo.

Member

Nishiki.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

8

used for now?

9

storage?

10

MR. MARK SPENCER:

11

MR. OTOMO:

12

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Yeah, what is that punawai being

What is the purpose of that?

Water

Stacy.

Irrigation for Wailuku Agribusiness.
Yeah, I know it's part of their whole

13

irrigation system for Wailuku Agribusiness, and

14

that's part of the reason why we don't have control

15

over it.

16

we talked earlier about irrigating for the common

17

area.

18

and Avery Chumbley about that.

19

agreement yetr but it's our understanding that we'll

20

be able to use that for common area irrigation, but

21

it's part of their whole irrigation system.

22

We have -- and againr I want to clear uPr

We have been in discussions with Wailuku Ag

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

There's not a formal

You mention that the area

23

residents, as Officer Rodrigues has brought up, were

24

not against Waiko as being used for this new

25

subdivision.

And I guess my question is the
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1

immediate families were told of perhaps how she

2

described when a traffic light goes in that there

3

will be automobiles that will actually stand in line

4

and emit exhaust and were they familiar with

5

I'm sure that in the end we're going to have to put

6

up sidewalks, curbs, and gutters there for the

7

safety of the residents.

8

any right now?

9
10

MS. RODRIGUES:

and

I don't know if we've got

Do we have any right now?

No.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

We don't, yeah.

So that will

11

probably be a must, but how close are the property

12

line to what the street right-of-ways will be when

13

they are brought to standards?

14

of the residences be to the roadway?

15

MR. MARK SPENCER:

16

that.

How close will some

You know, I don't know the answer to

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

18

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Because it's a concern.

Right.

And I'm going to clear up too,

19

I'm not going to say that -- there was concern on,

20

you know, traffic that would be going through there

21

and additional traffic, and there was discussion on

22

that, and the main discussion was cars backing up

23

because there's no light, and, you know, all the

24

cars trying to get across that intersection.

25

when we came back to them, I believe it was at the

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808)

524-2090

So

HHS 7/6/04

168

1

second meeting or possibly it was the third -- I

2

think it was the third meeting and told them about

3

the light, on that issue we had, from what I

4

observed, was approval, you know, almost unanimous,

5

but I wouldn't -- I want to make sure I'm clear.

6

did not state that there wasn't concerns originally

7

about the traffic going up there.

8

concerns for the community was restricting their

9

movement on that street.

10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

The bigger

Well, yeah, if you're given by the

11

community either this or that and there's only two

12

choices, I guess what has been brought up by the

13

Officer was why wasn't Pilikuna Street, whatever

14

that street

15

MS. RODRIGUES:

16

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

17

MR. MARK SPENCER:

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I

Pilikana.
is there that I see --

Pilikana.
would be kind of like smack dab

19

across the middle of that subdivision, why was --

20

was that considered as an -- not an alternative but

21

another way of having traffic in and out of the

22

subdivision?

23

MR. MARK SPENCER:

We had that at first on our plans, and

24

when it came down to the State, the State responded

25

that they basically were looking for us to put up
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1

the light at Waiko, to put up -- or to help with the

2

light at Pilikana, and if there was one at what

3

we've called Road A, which is just a road reserve,

4

to put up that light as well, which was -- would be

5

a large financial burden on these houses.

6

that was part of the reason we started looking at

7

it.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

9

MR. MARK SPENCER:

10
11

And so

Yeah, and I don't

And that was one of the initiating

factors.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

No, I don't think that you people,

12

as Riki -- no, Riki didn't say it, but he mentioned

13

about the cumulative impact of what's going on right

14

now and perhaps some of these people that are

15

building this subdivision should pay for some of the

16

traffic signalization.

17

should bear it all.

18

impact, but my -- my concern is that Waiko will

19

become a very used road because it connects with

20

Kuihelani Highway, and Riki knows that that light

21

industrial area hasn't been finished yet also.

22

I don't think you people

Yours is just part of an

You know, so when we look at what's occurring

23

there

24

planners and our different departments that's

25

looking at this project, you know, whatever is fair

and maybe it's not for you but it's for our
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should be looked at, but in lieu of what I see that

2

is going to be there, Alice, Public Works Director,

3

maybe Waiko shouldn't be the road, you know, just

4

because of what area residents have to -- or will be

5

put up with.

6

developed, Public Works Director, how close will

7

some of those homes be next to the roadway?

8

9

And I'm curious as to if that road is

And I am sure that if we don't have any other
roads coming in and out, that Waiko will be much

10

impacted.

11

lives in that area.

12

by knowledge but not actually driving.

13

Pilikuna [sic], why -- why was that not looked at?

14

I mean --

15

MR. MARK SPENCER:

And, Riki, you drive it.

Your family

And so, you know, I see it just
And so

Well, one of the other reasons is that

16

would -- that would segment the community to the

17

neighborhood and you would be putting in a planned

18

development, a street right down the middle of it

19

connecting to the highway.

20

The other thing I want to touch on too is we

21

anticipate that some of the traffic that's going

22

down Honoapiilani Highway now will get diverted to

23

this new collector road, which is Waiale, that if

24

you're over here in the County building, you're

25

headed that way, you're not going to go up the
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1

highway to go to Waiko.

You're going to head down

2

the new collector road.

So we think it will take

3

some traffic off of that.

4

remind you, the long-range plan is for Waiale to go

5

toward Maui Tropical plantation.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

7

MR. MARK SPENCER:

In addition, you know, to

Right.

And I think maybe what we as a

8

County -- I'm speaking outside of Spencer Homes now,

9

is we have an opportunity with Spencer Homes coming

10

to bat and with their project coming on line to give

11

us Waiale from Kuikahi to Waiko, I would think that

12

would help our County jump on that plan a little bit

13

more aggressive, a little bit more quicker to go

14

ahead and get that -- get that in.

15

point we have a true bypass around Waikapu, and I

16

would

17

that as well.

18

Because at that

I would encourage the County to accelerate

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, this is -- this is based on

19

the throwing of the dice.

I'm just looking at what

20

I know is cumulatively being developed there, and I

21

know that there's a web development that I got in

22

the Committee that wants to develop on the mauka

23

side of the highway, and there's numerous ones

24

there.

25

in, we're going to have stop and go, and I think all

And as Mike said, once we put traffic lights
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I think what

1

of us have got to accept that fact.

2

we're concerned about is impacts on a neighborhood

3

that was there that may not realize if we do it this

4

way, the kind of traffic that they're going to

5

experience.
And I have -- I only know what I see and what

6
7

I now experience as I drive into Wailuku, sir, and

8

so any future development is not something that I

9

can debate about, but with you and what I see coming

10

up, I know that I can now have some control over the

11

DOT in establishing a more fair way of distributing

12

the traffic rather than to the residents of Waiko.

13

And I'd like to -- you know, I don't know, I'd like

14

to understand exactly how close the roadway will be

15

to an existing residence.

16

MR. MARK SPENCER:

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

18

that?

19

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Do you know?

No, I don't know that.
But should we be concerned about

The roadway is there now, though,

20

right?

21

mean I guess we could -- you know, we could check

22

that.

23

I mean we're not adding that roadway, so I

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, well, what we are going to

24

add on is standing traffic that's going to be coming

25

in and out.
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MR. MARK SPENCER:

I think in a way, though, we're going

2

to add some traffic, but we're going to relieve that

3

left-hand traffic through a light.

4

what you're talking about.

5

waited to turn left.

6

because of that.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I mean, I know

I've been there and I've

Like I don't go up that way

Let me ask you this, are you

8

against creating another roadway out of your

9

subdivision off of Honoapiilani?

10

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Yeah, that doesn't --

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

12

MR. MARK SPENCER:

If there can be --

Well, because what we've done is we

13

went and redesigned our plan, you know, based on the

14

comments we got.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

16

MR. MARK SPENCER:

Okay.

So it would send us back.

So for that

17

alone, if it stopped this process and made it go

18

back, I can guarantee you -- guarantee you what

19

Jesse would say, but anything to slow down this

20

project that we believe -- I mean, again, we believe

21

this traffic plan works, and I believe there's some

22

real good things for the surrounding community that

23

this Waiale Road will give them.

24

more traffic going up Waiko?

25

Will there be some

Yeah.

And again, our first plan was to try to
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reduce traffic from what it is nowr and when we

2

first met with the State and they wanted us to put a

3

light up there r we were ready to fight that r you

4

know, that that wasn't -- shouldn't be our

5

responsibility.

6

access.

7

overwhelming majority was -- I put it out to them r I

8

said r well r isn't it worth it for your neighbors

9

here r even if you go down to Kuikahi r which is a

We were even going to limit that

And then when we met with Waikapu r the

10

mile down?

That wasn't acceptable.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

12

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Okay.

Thank you.

Thank your Mark.

I'd just like to add

13

my comment in regards to a traffic light at that one

14

particular junction.

15

general r the ballfields are located mauka of the --

16

makai of the highwaYr and as far as the -- the newer

17

subdivisions that's located mauka of the highwaYr

18

that's where you have your young families.

19

order for the kids to cross H-Piilani safelYr we

20

need a street light somewhere.

21
22

When you look at Waikapu in

So in

OkaYr Members r are there any more specific

questions for the Officer?

23

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

I got one.
Member Molina.
Thank your Chairman.
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Good afternoon, Officer Rodrigues.

1

In your

2

comments this afternoon you mention a concern with I

3

guess monitoring and responding to calls out in this

4

proposed subdivision.

5

bit more on that and why you feel I guess having

6

this much more housing in this area would I guess

7

hinder maybe the Department's efforts to respond to

8

any calls out there?

9

MS. RODRIGUES:

Can you elaborate a little

Not that it's hindering.

It's just that

10

it should be taken into consideration, bringing up

11

the -- adding to the Police Department as far as the

12

Waikapu area -- or,

13

area we have a Beat 10, a Beat 11, and a Beat 12,

14

and that covers from -- correct me if I'm wrong,

15

LT -- from Maalaea or, you know, the Tropical

16

Plantation area, Maalaea area, all the way to

17

Kahakuloa, three officers for that whole area.

18

you're adding all these houses on there.

19

spreading our icing a little too thin.

20

know,

21

Department as far as beat officers go.

Now,

We're
So, you

just to consider adding to the Police

22

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

23

MS. RODRIGUES:

24

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

25

I'm sorry, the whole Wailuku

And

That was my comment.
Okay.

And as far as you know, about

how many people short are you in the Department?
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1

MS. RODRIGUES:

2

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

3

MS. RODRIGUES:

4

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

5

MS. RODRIGUES:

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

8

Officer?

30.

30.
Roughly 30?

Currently 30, yes.
Thank you.

Okay.
Members { any more questions for the

Member Nishiki.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Storage lane.

On Honoapiilani

9

Highway, if someone were to be making a left turn

10

into this subdivision off of Honoapiilani off of,

11

say, Waiko, do you know how much -- how many cars

12

can be stored?

13

resident was that if there are cars making a left

14

turn into Waiko off of Honoapiilani Highway and then

15

you've got cars that just want to go off

16

Honoapiilani, right now how many storage lanes --

17

how many cars can fit in a storage lane there right

18

now?

19

MS. RODRIGUES:

20

or five.

My concern as raised by an area

I would guesstimate approximately be four

21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

22

MS. RODRIGUES:

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

24

MS. RODRIGUES:

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

In that left-turn lane.
Right.

Yeah, right.
Now, once that storage lane is
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1

blocked, Mr. Chairman, and now we have gridlock on

2

Honoapiilani Highway -- that means traffic going

3

to -- won't be able to go until that left-turn lane

4

is cleared, would there be a concern if Waiko is

5

used and there is not sufficient storage?

6

guess my question is what would be adequate or is

7

that something that the Highway Department decides

8

on storage lanes?

9

MS. RODRIGUES:

And I

I would -- I would say that's something

10

that the highway should do, but my concern as an

11

Officer is that people get impatient and start

12

passing on the right-hand side.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Yeah, I know that.

Okay.

14

Similarly, people coming off of Honoapiilani making

15

that right turn into Waiko coming from Maalaea to

16

Wailuku, is there any storage lane right now for

17

people wanting to make a right turn?

18

MS. RODRIGUES:

No.

19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So then if somebody wanted to make

20

a right turn and traffic was going mauka-makai,

21

people from -- on top going down, that would also

22

stop traffic on Honoapiilani Highway going into

23

Wailuku?

24

MS. RODRIGUES:

25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Right.
So, Mr. Chairman, also I would
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1

hope that we would look at a length of a storage

2

lane on Honoapiilani going into Waiko.

3

don't know, I think you're more familiar with that

4

than me, but I

5

know that that is a concern.

6

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Riki, I

as she stated there's none, and I

Thank you.
Finally, if people were to come

8

out of that subdivision on Waiko wanting to go right

9

or left onto Honoapiilani Highway, right now the

10

11
12

road width allows just one car?
MS. RODRIGUES:

If I can recall correctly, yes.

It's only

a two-lane and

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

14

MS. RODRIGUES:

Street.

-- I'm not an engineer, but I can't -- I

15

can't see being able to expand on that to add

16

another lane without encroaching on the residents.

17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

I think you're right.

And

18

finally, you mention in your report here road widths

19

within the subdivision.

20

if you looked at the road width, but you say that

21

right now there is no accommodation for on-street

22

parking with the road widths right now?

23
24
25

MS. RODRIGUES:

As you -- and I don't know

I don't know exactly what the road widths

are.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.
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1

MS. RODRIGUES:

And I didn't look into that.

However, I

2

did suggest that it's inevitable that residents are

3

going to park on the roadway, because you got

4

families coming to visit.

5

they are going to park on the roadway.

6

as you don't stop traffic.

7

going both ways, you know, so that emergency

8

because I've been in residential areas where they

9

have huge parties and only one car at a time can go

10
11
12
13

through.

Whatever the case is,

Traffic's not stopped

That's not acceptable.

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

Just as long

That's not safe.

So we need on-street

parking one side of the road at least at a minimal.
MS. RODRIGUES:

If that's -- if that's in the plan, but

14

it's inevitable it's an old family residential area

15

and you're going to have visiting family members.

16

That's just how it goes.

17

and birthday parties or whatever, you have other

18

people coming into the residence and they're going

19

to need parking areas, but with a 5,000 square foot

20

lot, you can't add very much houses -- I mean, I'm

21

sorry, vehicles onto that property.

22

to park on the road.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

24

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

25

They're going

Okay, thank you.

Thank you.

for the Officer?

When it comes to holidays

Members, any more questions

If not, thank you again, Officer
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Rodrigues.
Okay, at this time I'd like to calIon the

2

3

Director of Public Works.

4

questions for the Public Works Director?

5

Molina.

6

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Gil.

Okay, Members, any
Member

Thank you, Chairman.

Good afternoon, Mr. Coloma-Agaran f regarding

7
8

the signalization of Waiko Road

9

discussions with Mr. Cajigal at any time ever

f

have you in your

10

discussed the possibility of first maybe a four-way

11

stop rather than a traffic signal?

12

up because Member Hokama had alluded to it earlier,

13

that traffic signals sometimes contribute to longer

14

lines.

15

hearing about it over at Launiupoko f about what that

16

traffic signal has done out in that area.

17

there -- a four-way stop been considered at -- that

18

you know of by the State?

19

And I bring that

And I guess right now we're -- we've been

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Has

I don't believe that's been discussed

20

with State Department of Transportation at all.

21

This is a limited access road, and I

22

believe they'd be looking at putting in a four-way

23

stOPf but I'm sure that that's an issue that could

24

be raised with them.

25

gets done at that particular intersection.

I don't

I mean, they do control what

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS f INC.
(808) 524-2090

181

HHS 7/6/04

1

VICE-CHAIR MOLINA:

Okay.

Because I notice with four-way

2

stops I guess people are somehow forced to be

3

courteous to each other, so whereas -- and the flow

4

sort of, you know, goes a little bit better than

5

with a traffic signal, especially if .sometimes the

6

signal light stays on for a prolonged period of

7

time, then you get back ups on either

8

of the highway.

9

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

either side

So anyway, thank you.

Any more questions for the Department?

10

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

11

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

12

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Question.

Member Hokama.
If I can stay on the road at this

13

time.

And I know it's not Mr. Agaran's

14

responsibility, Honoapiilani Highway, since that is

15

State Department of Transportation's jurisdiction,

16

but we've been listening to the Police Officer, her

17

concerns.

18

that they've investigated.

19

about Waiko Road, and I'm sure you know this,

20

Mr. Agaran, is the concern of safety and sight

21

distance from -- you know, if you follow the law and

22

you actually stop at the white solid bar by the stop

23

sign, more than likely you have no clue of what is

24

oncoming traffic, particularly coming from Tropical

25

Plantation if you're on, what is it, East Waiko

We've listened to the developer's options
One thing I can tell you
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1

Road/ the bottom portion.

2

look left, you're going to see one utility pole and

3

tall grass.

4

which we brought it up during Brewer Chemical, sight

5

distance is going to be a regular problem.

6

know Mr. Nishiki asked about turning lanes, but if

7

you look where interesting enough we put a sidewalk

8

and where that property -- private property starts,

9

there's no other room for a turning lane, left-turn

10
11

Because as soon as you

Unless they move that utility pole,

lane or right-turn lane.

And I

Okay.

So I raise these things, Mr. Agaran, because

12

the areas that you do have control is, I would

13

believe, such as Waiko Road.

14

enforcement we can do is keep those tractor-trailer

15

trucks out of the residential area, particularly

16

with questionable gross volume waste that cut across

17

that small bridge right by the cemetery.

18

you from a lot of experience going up and down that

19

road, what I see going up and down that road.

20

And the best thing for

And I tell

So maybe, again, we just got to beef up

21

enforcement, start tagging these truckers.

22

course we one of the few counties -- you know,

23

Honolulu is now trying to duplicate our -- our

24

that fee for licensing re-authorization.

25

upped it to $100 from $20.

524-2090

We've

Honolulu is now looking
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1

at duplicating our ordinance regarding that.

2

But what I want to bring up else, Mr. Agaran,

3

is since -- until we change it, you are the guardian

4

or the keeper of Title 19, is my understanding as I

5

read the code.

6

Works Director.

7

approvals that can assist in mitigating and assist

8

in this project coming into fruition or to actual

9

construction?

For that reason, they made Public
Are there conditions of early

And again, I bring it up because we heard

10
11

about the Spencers being asked to pay for stop

12

lights, they've been asked to pay for this whole

13

road extension, they've been asked to do this, this,

14

this.

15

fair amount, you know, there's enough of us

16

Councilors with seniority to know that others have

17

been assessed the responsibility through conditions

18

of approval.

19

today that addresses it and will take care of those

20

concerns?

While I feel that they need to be assessed a

21

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

22

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

23

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Is there something you can inform us

Mr. Chair.
Mr. Agaran.
First let me note that because of the

24

Charter amendment a number of years ago, the Corp.

25

Counsel has given an opinion that actually Title 19
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1

does fall within the Planning Department, even

2

though the ordinance has not actually been changed.

3

So there are areas in Title 19 that still refer to

4

Public Works Director but should properly be the

5

Planning Director, same with Title 18 which still

6

makes references to the Planning Director, which

7

actually should be references to our Department.

8
9

But given that, we are aware because of the
wash out at Waiko, that there were a number of

10

approvals that were given in the past to some of the

11

users from the land

12

some of the lessees in that area where they did make

13

commitments to the County to do certain

14

improvements, and because we are pursuing the

15

repairs to the washed out area, we are going to be

16

using some of that -- some of those commitments as

17

part of the repair, and we're also looking to use

18

those conditions and any improvements that we make

19

to Waiko Road that we're going to be seeking through

20

Federal aid.

some of the landowners and

21

And we're hoping that as part of the

22

transaction that we would -- the County would take

23

ownership of the entire length of Waiko and be able

24

to make improvements from Honoapiilani Highway all

25

the way to Kuihelani.

It is true, and I know the
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1

concerns are going to be there, that the

2

right-of-ways on Waiko closer to Honoapiilani are

3

not -- may not allow us to have as many -- we won't

4

have the kind of choices we might be able to have in

5

other areas where there are wider rights-of-ways in

6

terms of sight distance and other improvements, but

7

we are -- let me assure you that the Department is

8

looking at the commitments that were made by

9

developers in the past and also for the developments

10

that are now being -- being proposed.

11

one, but also a couple of other light industrial

12

projects that are being proposed off of Waiko to

13

help with improvements that would be needed on that

14

road.

15

Not just this

In addition, there are some commitments that

16

were made by the Wailuku Project District in the

17

past, which you alluded to, and those are finally

18

moving forward.

19

requirements, off-site drainage requirements for

20

Kehalani, they are going to be realigning the

21

existing Waiale Road.

22

one that is not shown on the plans, but it will be

23

the new alignment that's shown on these plans, and

24

that's the alignment that Spencer is proposing now

25

to construct to the same -- basically the same

In conjunction with the drainage

That

that alignment is the
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1

standards as the lower part of Kuikahi, down from

2

below Alu and past Honoapiilani down to where it

3

meets Waiale. So there are -- there are other

4

developments that are happening now that are going

5

to be adding to the entire transportation

6

infrastructure that we have.

7

You are also correct that the long-term plan

8

for Waiale is to take Waiale all the way back out to

9

Honoapiilani probably close to the Maui Tropical

10

Plantation.

We are in discussions with Wailuku

11

Agribusiness about getting that alignment.

12

Council knows in the current budget you did allocate

13

to us 1.5 million, and we would be looking at using

14

portions of that to get started on that project.

15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

16

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

17

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

The

If I may, Chairman.

Go ahead, Mr. Hokama.
Thank you.

And thank you very much

18

for your comments, Mr. Director, this afternoon.

19

Just a couple questions in regards to

20

specifically to this project.

21

when we1ve taken abutting property

22

consideration for more intensive use has been

23

drainage and runoff as it could possibly impact

24

Waiko Stream and the potential stream routing that

25

mayor may not impact Kealia.

One of the concerns
projects into

Has your engineers in
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1

the review of this project -- because, againr you

2

have the pond, and I just bring this up because,

3

againr we all got eyes.

4

catchment by Kuikahi intersection and Waiale is

5

happening in that area that takes from current

6

subdivision development in that area and some even

7

planned for mauka.

8

Department's regional planning and it all fits in

9

with the projects such as the Spencer project here r

We all see that big

Is that all part of your

10

or is it pretty much an independent separated

11

drainage components?

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I think it's fair to say that they're

13

actually separate, but because we're aware of what's

14

being proposed in all the different projects r we

15

know conceptually what Spencer is proposing as far

16

as expanding the drainage that Kehalani is

17

constructing, but we are going to be requiring

18

them -- of this particular developer, you know r a

19

drainage -- drainage analysis that will satisfy us

20

that what actually gets constructed is going to

21

serve -- serve what the ordinance costs were.

22

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay.

And again, for the normal

23

range and drainage requirements, Mr. Director, I am

24

confident in your Department's ability to ensure us

25

with appropriate standards.

For whatever reason
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1

we've been tending to receive that 50-year storm

2

within a three-year period lately.

3

amounts of rainfall, massive movement of earth

4

that's -- due to lack of vegetation or whatever have

5

you has impacted your drainage system, the gutters.

6

We deal with mud slides on the road systems, wash

7

out roads, culverts unable to handle flows.

8

again, I -- everything is -- we all know the slope,

9

the terrain of this area, and so everything mauka

I mean, massive

And

10

above Honoapiilani will eventually come across

11

Honoapiilani.

12

questions in advance of us ensuring we -- we don't

13

have to deal with those major disasters down the

14

road.

15

And so I ask you this type of

One thing I wanted to ask you, since one of

16

the exemptions in Section 18 is regarding the

17

sidewalks, curbs, and gutters, but that, as I

18

understand that exemption for, Mr. Director, is only

19

between Kuikahi Drive and East Ko -- East Waiko Road

20

as it relates to Waiale.

21

understanding?

22

of Exhibit I, which is attached to the very first

23

resolution.

24
25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:
to Waiale.

Is that your

I bring this up

this is on page 2

That's my understanding, is it applies
You might want to ask the developer if
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1

theyrre also talking about the -- the road that

2

doesnrt quite connect into Honoapiilani thatrs a

3

future connector.

4

head, so I assume it doesnrt apply to that road, so

5

itrs just Waiale.

6

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

Okay, I see them shaking their

Just for the record, Chair, lIve

7

looked at Mr. Spencer who nodded yes.

So thank you

8

for that Mr. -- and the reason I went back to this

9

exemption -- because I was listening to Mr. Foley,

10

the Police Officer, if you look at the old

11

residential areas of Waikapu versus the newer ones

12

with the curbs, sidewalks, and gutters, one way that

13

it keeps the road -- the road -- asphalt paved road

14

very usable is that when you do have that visitor,

15

family member, whatever, they l re on the easement,

16

but the grass easement, thatrs where they parking,

17

so they off the street.
Once they get that concrete, curb, and

18
19

gutter, when they park on the side, they on the

20

street.

21

space where now it l s a one -- actually a one-lane

22

road on a two-lane system.

23

question comes, especially where my family lives, my

24

sister and her husband, is 11m not too sure if a

25

fire truck could go through that one-lane area in

So you narrow your usable -- actual usable

And a lot of time the
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1

response to a callout when you've got vehicles

2

parked on both sides of that two-lane road,

3

Chairman.

4

So I bring this in advance, knowing how the

5

circular routing is for this subdivision if one of

6

the exemptions is from the curbs and gutters as I

7

envision it, I can see it makes sense to a certain

8

standpoint, as well as saving costs per lot.

9

that's why I bring up that question about whether or

10

not it's for anything between Kuikahi and East Waiko

11

Road besides just Waiale Drive?

12
13

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

And

No, my understanding is it's just

Waiale Drive.
COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:

What if the request from us came,

15

would you consider that we reduce some of that curbs

16

and gutters requirement for within the subdivision

17

and allow them to park on those grass right-of-ways

18

and easements, instead of putting in those concrete

19

curbings?

20

too expensive, more than likely you're going to have

21

more than two vehicles in that one house -- I mean,

22

look at my sister, lost her husband, that lady

23

rents.

24

eight.

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I mean, if you believe that the price is

I can count eight vehicles to one house

l

You know, it wasn't something that was
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1

discussed, because from the start they always told

2

us they intended to build the internal roads of the

3

subdivision to standard.

So it really hasn't been

4

something that's come to

it wasn't a subject of

5

our discussions with them.

Secondly, the Council

6

should be aware that they do intend to dedicate all

7

the roads associated with the project, including

8

Waiale as built, the way they're proposing.

9

would be -- that's the only comment that we have.

So that

10

It really hasn't been something that was discussed

11

with them, but they were going to build the internal

12

roads to our urban residential standards.

13
14
15

COUNCILMEMBER HOKAMA:
Mr. Director.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

16

Director?

17

Molina?

18

Thank you.

Thank you very much,

Thank you.
Members, any more questions for the

Member Carroll?

Member Mateo?

Member

Member Nishiki?

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Gil, when Riki asked you the

19

question about the interior roads built to

20

standards, meaning curbs, gutters, sidewalks, the

21

concern from the Officer was probably the width of

22

the side -- of the roadway, being able to off-street

23

park, because, as Riki pointed out, ultimately

24

that's what people will be doing, and then the

25

ability for emergency vehicles, the gamut to be able
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1

to process itself through the width that we are

2

going to allow them to build that to.

3

going to be a problem?

4

Is there going to be off-street parking or is the

5

width of the roads going to be an impossibility for

6

off-street parking and emergency vehicles to be able

7

to traverse or do you know?

8
9

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Is there

Is -- let me ask you this.

My understanding is they are planning

to meet our urban standards in the residential area.

10

That means that both our Department and the Fire

11

Department will need to approve those.

12

that if the Fire Department approves the widths of

13

those roadways, that that should take into account

14

the concerns that the Officer expressed about public

15

safety, and that's what we're looking at.

16

if you notice the

17

up with had a lot of cul-de-sacs, but now they have

18

these loops which allows circulation from both

19

sides.

20

preliminary -- preliminary comments that came from

21

the Fire Department.

22

I assume

I think

the original proposal they came

And part of that was to really address some

So I would -- I would think that -- I don't

23

think you can ever predict what residents will do

24

during a party or the like in terms of parking on

25

both sides of the street or whatever, but we're --
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1

what we look at when they actually come in with

2

actual construction plans will be to make sure that

3

they address the public safety concerns, and

4

obviously we would not be signing off on those

5

construction plans without the Fire Department

6

approving those plans.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

You mentioned earlier -- I'll ask

8

the question this way.

Is there any improvements in

9

this subdivision that the County will later on pick

10

up as a capital project to satisfy County

11

requirements that later on may be required

12

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

14

15

The long-term --- that we are exempting this

development from?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Yes, the long-term plan for this area

16

is to have Waiale Road serve as a bypass for

17

Honoapiilani.

18

beyond its current right-of-way in most of this

19

area.

20

are looking at what to do with Waiale, and that will

21

probably be some kind of expansion on Waiale.

22

that point we would be making it wider.

23

we're looking at construction of a two-lane road,

24

and that they will not be putting in curbs, gutters

25

and, sidewalks.

Honoapiilani cannot be expanded

So you should expect that at some point we

At

Right now

At some point, then, the County
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1

will have to put in the expanded lanes and perhaps

2

the curbs, gutters r and sidewalks if that's what we

3

want to

4

in this area.

5

dOr

take care of drains or other conditions

So at least on the roadwaysr certainly part

6

of what we're looking at is in the future the County

7

will have to take that on.

8

towards other developers adjoining this -- adjoining

9

this portion of Waiale r you probably will not get

If you're looking

10

those developers to do the -- do the infrastructure

11

improvements on the frontage.

12

next to the Spencer project my understanding is

13

going to be purchased by a school and the other by a

14

church r both of which could be exempt from doing the

15

frontage improvements.

16

entire stretch from Kuikahi to Waiko r I would expect

17

that that's going to be the County that needs to put

18

in those curbs r gutters r and sidewalks.

19
20
21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

The two large lots

So when we look at this

Is Waiale master plan to be

two lanes or four lanes?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

It's planned to be a major collector

22

in this arear but right now they would be

23

constructing two lanes to Waiko.

24
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So we're not looking at Waiale

to -- when you say major collector r what does that

RALPH ROSENBERG COURT REPORTERS, INC.
(808) 524-2090

HHS 7/6/04

1

2

195

mean, how many lanes?
MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

It could be up to -- it could be more

3

than two lanes, but at this point you wouldn't build

4

out the laneage until you needed it.

5

the two lanes would be sufficient.

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So currently

Okay, so then you heard the

7

developer early on talk about some of the exemptions

8

that we're giving them, but in your understanding

9

for Public Works, whether it be for wastewater

10

assessment fees for facility expansion for the

11

Wailuku wastewater treatment system, if they have an

12

exemption, which they did not talk about, who pays

13

for that or is there anybody that pays for it?

14

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

I believe they're talking about not

15

paying the assessment for the existing facilities,

16

which is in this area about $1,599 per unit.

17

that's basically they wouldn't be paying a fee of

18

approximately $655,000 for that.

19

committed, though, my understanding, to build any

20

off-site improvements that are required for our

21

system.

22

take up once they actually come in with construction

23

plans.

So

They have

And so that's something that we'll have to

24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

25

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

What do you mean by a system?

Both any of our collection lines that
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1

are found to be inadequate or pump stations and the

2

like, because all of this will have to find -- find

3

a way to the Kahului plant.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

So

that's just part of what

5

we -- what they need to do, but -- so we are

6

actually giving them approximately a $600,000

7

exemption for assessment fees for the facility

8

expansion.

9

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

That was for the past expansion, so

10

because we expanded the plant, we did some work at

11

the plant a number of years ago --

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

13

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Okay.
an assessment fee was created for

14

any projects that eventually are going to be adding

15

to the system.

16

that, then that's another

17

that the County through --

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

19

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

20
21

if they don't pay into

So if the

that's something else

Absorbs.

Yeah, through its sewer fees, so it

would be current users, existing users.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

Okay.

And then the exemption for

22

sewage disposal relating to the lateral connections,

23

I didn't quite understand that, but is that

24

something that they're going to work out with you in

25

regards to -- explain to us what that means.
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1

didn't quite understand what they represented it to

2

be, something about --

3

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

Currently what the Department would

4

like to see is really a separate lateral from each

5

lot connecting into the collection system r and as

6

I think as Mark described it, it's really more of a

7

concern about making sure we know who needs to pay

8

for any repairs.

9

be the -- it would basically be the landowner, and

If it's in the lateral, it would

10

if the blockage problem is in our collection system r

11

then we would be responsible for it.

12

What the developer here is proposing is to do

13

double laterals r meaning two lots for each lateral.

14

It reduces their costs r but for us it did raise some

15

issues about who do we -- who do we calIon to pay

16

for the repairs if it's determined that the problem

17

was in the lateral.

18

proposing is that they would basically put the onus

19

on the -- for any lateral r any double lateral in

20

this project would be the responsibility of the

21

association.

22

association, the association would pay us, and if

23

there's an issue on which landowner should pay for

24

what the association has paid over to the County,

25

they would deal with that.

So what the developer is

So the County would just go to the

So with that I think
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1

welre willing to work with them on deviating from

2

that policy.

3
4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:
legal document?

5

MR. COLOMA-AGARAN:

6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI:

7

8
9

Yes.
And understanding of that.

Okay.

11m done.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:

Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.

Members, any

more questions?
If not, lid like to thank the Director for

10
11

Okay, so that's going to require a

being here.
Members, if there's no objections, the Chair

12

13

would like to recess this meeting to tomorrow

14

morning and continue our discussion with the other

15

various departments that are here.

16

objections, lid like to recess this meeting.

17

COUNCIL MEMBERS:

18

CHAIR PONTANILLA:

If there's no

No objections.
Thank you.

Members, we will reconvene

19

this meeting at 9:00 o'clock tomorrow morning.

20

(Gavel) .

21

RECESS:

4 : 14 p. m.
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